



5TH GENERATION END-TO-END NETWORK, EXPERIMENTATION, SYSTEM INTEGRATION, AND SHOWCASING

[H2020 - Grant Agreement No. 815178]

Deliverable D4.18

Portable 5G Demonstrator (Release C)

Editor H. Koumaras (NCSRD)

Contributors NCSRD (NATIONAL CENTER FOR SCIENTIFIC RESEARCH "DEMOKRITOS"), FOGUS (FOGUS INNOVATIONS & SERVICES), NEM (NEMERGENT), ECM (EURECOM)

Version 1.0

Date Jul 31st, 2021

Distribution PUBLIC (PU)



List of Authors

NCSRD	NATIONAL CENTER FOR SCIENTIFIC RESEARCH "DEMOKRITOS"	
H. Koumaras, M. Christopoulou, G. Xilouris, Th. Anagnostopoulos, A. Sarlas		
FOGUS FOGUS INNOVATIONS & SERVICES		
D. Tsolkas, A.S. Charismiadis, P. Kostakis, D. Xenakis, N. Passas		

Disclaimer

The information, documentation and figures available in this deliverable are written by the 5GENESIS Consortium partners under EC co-financing (project H2020-ICT-815178) and do not necessarily reflect the view of the European Commission.

The information in this document is provided "as is", and no guarantee or warranty is given that the information is fit for any particular purpose. The reader uses the information at his/her sole risk and liability.

Copyright

Copyright © 2021 the 5GENESIS Consortium. All rights reserved.

The 5GENESIS Consortium consists of:

	_
NATIONAL CENTER FOR SCIENTIFIC RESEARCH "DEMOKRITOS"	Greece
AIRBUS DS SLC	France
ATHONET SRL	Italy
ATOS SPAIN SA	Spain
AVANTI HYLAS 2 CYPRUS LIMITED	Cyprus
AYUNTAMIENTO DE MALAGA	Spain
COSMOTE KINITES TILEPIKOINONIES AE	Greece
EURECOM	France
FOGUS INNOVATIONS & SERVICES P.C.	Greece
FON TECHNOLOGY SL	Spain
FRAUNHOFER GESELLSCHAFT ZUR FOERDERUNG DER ANGEWANDTEN FORSCHUNG E.V.	Germany
IHP GMBH – INNOVATIONS FOR HIGH PERFORMANCE MICROELECTRONICS/LEIBNIZ- INSTITUT FUER INNOVATIVE MIKROELEKTRONIK	Germany
INFOLYSIS P.C.	Greece
INSTITUTO DE TELECOMUNICACOES	Portugal
INTEL DEUTSCHLAND GMBH	Germany
KARLSTADS UNIVERSITET	Sweden
L.M. ERICSSON LIMITED	Ireland
MARAN (UK) LIMITED	UK
MUNICIPALITY OF EGALEO	Greece
NEMERGENT SOLUTIONS S.L.	Spain
ONEACCESS	France
PRIMETEL PLC	Cyprus
RUNEL NGMT LTD	Israel
SIMULA RESEARCH LABORATORY AS	Norway
SPACE HELLAS (CYPRUS) LTD	Cyprus
TELEFONICA INVESTIGACION Y DESARROLLO SA	Spain
UNIVERSIDAD DE MALAGA	Spain
UNIVERSITAT POLITECNICA DE VALENCIA	Spain
UNIVERSITY OF SURREY	UK

This document may not be copied, reproduced or modified in whole or in part for any purpose without written permission from the 5GENESIS Consortium. In addition to such written permission to copy, reproduce or modify this document in whole or part, an acknowledgement of the authors of the document and all applicable portions of the copyright notice must be clearly referenced.

Version History

Rev. N	Description	Author	Date
1.0	Release of D4.18	H. Koumaras	31/7/2021

LIST OF ACRONYMS

Acronym	Meaning		
3GPP	3 rd Generation Partnership Project		
5G PPP	5G Infrastructure Public Private Partnership		
5G-IA	The 5G Infrastructure Public Private Partnership		
APN	Access Point Name		
COTS	Commercial Off-The-Self		
DL	Downlink		
eMBMS	Evolved Multimedia Broadcast Multicast Services		
eNB	eNodeB, evolved NodeB, LTE eq. of base station		
EU	European Union		
EPC	Evolved Packet Core		
gNB	gNodeB, 5G NR, next generation NR eq. of base station		
GPP	General Purpose Processor		
HetNet	Heterogeneous Network		
HSS	Home Subscriber Server		
H-RAN	Heterogeneous RAN		
ICIC	Inter-Cell Interference Coordination		
ICMP	Internet Control Message protocol		
IDS	Intrusion Detection System		
IOT	Internet of Things		
KPI	Key Performance Indicator		
LNA	Low Noise Amplifier		
LPWA	Low Power Wide Area		
LTE	Long-Term Evolution		
LTE-A	Long-Term Evolution - Advanced		
MANO	MANagement and Orchestration		
MCS	Modulation Coding Scheme		
ΜΙΜΟ	Multiple-input-Multiple-output		
MME	Mobility Management Entity		
mMTC	Massive Machine Type Communications		
NBI	North Bound Interface		
NFV	Network Function Virtualisation		
NFVI	Network Function Virtualisation Infrastructure		
NSA	Non standalone		
NSMF	Network Slice Management Function		
NR	New Radio		
OAI	Open Air Interface		
OSA	OpenAirInterface Software Alliance		
OAM	Operations, Administration & Management		
OEM	Original Equipment Manufacturers		
OF	OpenFlow		
ONAP	Open networking Automation Platform		

Acronym	Meaning		
OSM	Open Source MANO		
PA	Power Amplifiers		
PRB	Physical Resource Block		
QoS	Quality of Service		
RAN	Radio Access Network		
RRH	Remote Radio Head		
RRM	Radio Resource management		
RTT	Round-Trip-Time		
RU	Radio Unit		
SDN	Software Defined Network		
SDR	Software Defined Radio		
SFP	Small form-factor pluggable		
SPGW	Serving & PDN GateWay		
SISO	Single-Input Single-Output		
TDD	Time Division Duplex		
UAS	Unmanned Aerial Systems		
UE	User Equipment		
UL	Uplink		
VM	Virtual Machine		

Executive Summary

This document presents the 5GENESIS portable demonstrator, i.e., a portable platform that is used in the 5GENESIS project for participating in exhibitions/demo events and, also, to provide vertical sectors with a full 5G reference testbed for on-site testing. The main content of the document refers to the description of the integration activities conducted during the period up to M37 of the project.

As it is explained in the document, the development of the 5GENESIS portable demonstrator targets a compact physical layout to guarantee portability. However, the developments are not limited to a monolithic approach. Multiple building blocks have been integrated in a modular way to enhance the variety of test cases and experiments that the 5GENESIS portable demonstrator can support. In that sense, both open-source software solutions (such as the Open Air Interface (OAI), provided by EURECOM, over Ettus USRPs) and commercial off-the-shelf products (i.e., Amarisoft) have been adopted.

All the activities reported in this document abide by the need to meet a major objective of the project, i.e., the realisation of the 5GENESIS reference architecture (released from WP2 of the project). In this context, the reader can find infrastructure level integrations as well as installations and configurations of the 5GENESIS facility layer, i.e., the set of tools (released from WP5 of the project) that are being developed to enable automated experimentation, slice management, and performance monitoring. From the infrastructure perspective, research-oriented set ups for 4G and 5G technologies have been integrated, while a 5G SA/NSA solution is available for performance testing from verticals, such as the ones conducted for UAV vertical industry.

Table of Contents

	-
LIST OF ACRONYMS	6
LIST OF FIGURES	11
LIST OF TABLES	13
1. INTRODUCTION	14
1.1. Purpose of the Document	14
1.2. Structure of the Document	15
1.3. Target Audience	15
2. PORTABLE DEMONSTRATOR OVERVIEW	16
2.1. Target Deployment Overview	16
2.2. Platform Infrastructure Layer	17
2.2.1. Mobile Network Technology	18
2.2.1.1. OAI-based 5G NSA end-to-end setup	19
2.2.1.2. Commercial 5G SA/NSA setup	23
(a) Amarisoft Callbox Classic	23
(b) Amarisoft Callbox mini	24
(c) Raspberry Pi-based SA/NSA 5G UE	25
(d) 5G CPE	
(e) DualBand Small Cell Panel Antenna combined with PAs/LNAs	26
2.2.1.3. OAI-based End-to-End 4G setup	28
2.2.2. Transport Network	34
2.2.2.1. OpenDaylight-based emulator	34
2.2.2.2. Onos-based emulator with FOGUS SDN testbox	35
2.3. Management and Orchestration Layer	38
2.4. Coordination Layer	41
3. PORTABLE DEMONSTRATOR EVOLUTION IN 5GENESIS	44
3.1. Evolution timeline	44
3.1.1. 4G Deployment Configurations	45
3.1.2. 5G Deployment Configurations	46
3.2. Phase 3 accomplishments	47
3.2.1. 5G NR support evolution and SA support	47
3.2.2. Integration of Open5GENESIS Release B	48
3.2.3. Use of 5GENESIS portable demonstrator for video streaming test cases	50

3.2.4. Use of 5GENESIS portable demonstrator for 5G-enabled UAV field trials	54
3.2.4.1. C2 Link	55
3.2.4.2. Payload Communications	55
3.2.4.3. QoS and UAS Services	57
3.2.4.4. 5G-Enabled UAS Architecture	57
Ground Control Station	57
3.2.4.5. Field Trials and Results	58
4. CONCLUSIONS	61
References	62

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1 Physical diagram of the Portable Demonstrator16	3
Figure 2 5G NR Setup of the Portable Demonstrator 19)
Figure 3 Antennas gain plots on 3.5GHz)
Figure 4 Octoclock-G Clock Distribution Module)
Figure 5 5G-NR OAI Scope monitors detection of 5G NR physical channels	I
Figure 6 OAI Textlog T-tracer timestamped logs on the OAI gNB and nrUE	I
Figure 7 Ping and iPerf tests between OAI gNB and OAI nr-UE	2
Figure 8 DL (Mbps) assessment at MCS 24/15/9 23	3
Figure 9 Amarisoft Callbox Classic and Samsung A90 5G24	ŀ
Figure 10 Amarisoft Web Interface	ŀ
Figure 11 Amarisoft Callbox Mini	5
Figure 12 SIM8200EA-M2 5G HAT UE	5
Figure 13 Qualcomm Snapdragon X55 CPE 26	3
Figure 14 DualBand Small Cell Panel Antenna27	7
Figure 15 Typical Pattern of the DualBand Small Cell Panel Antenna at 3.6GHz	3
Figure 16 PAs and LNAs configured within the portable case	3
Figure 17 The end-to-end 4G set up 29)
Figure 18 The LTE dongle used in the 4G set up)
Figure 19 The established connection from the LTE Dongle in the 4G setup)
Figure 20 The T-tracer results as retrieved from the eNB	I
Figure 21 The components and the interfaces of the setup as provided by OAI	l
Figure 22 The integrated network topology with the IPs used	3
Figure 23 Console screenshots depicting the data flow in the core network	ŀ
Figure 24 An example of Torus Topology in Mininet with ODL as external SDN Controller	ŀ
Figure 25: Traffic passing through Mininet	5
Figure 26 Mininet Console	5
Figure 27 FOGUS SDN TestBox Start Page	3
Figure 28 FOGUS SDN TestBox Topology Selection	3
Figure 29 FOGUS SDN TestBox Ingress & Egress Switch Selection	7
Figure 30 FOGUS SDN TestBox Link Configuration	7
Figure 31 FOGUS SDN TestBox Switch Configuration	7
Figure 32 FOGUS SDN TestBox Statistics in InfluxDB	3
Figure 33 FOGUS SDN TestBox ONOS GUI	3
Figure 34 MANO Layer VMs)
Figure 35 NFV MANO OSM)
Figure 36 Katana Slice Manager	l
Figure 37 Set of screens depicting the steps for setting an experiment in the Portable Demonstrator 42	2

Figure 38 Memory usage and Throughput screens from the Grafana component	. 43
Figure 39 Instantiation of the 5GENESIS Architecture during integration cycle 3 (phase 3)	. 45
Figure 40. ELCM Release B Dashboard	. 49
Figure 41. VNF onboarding through Portal UI	. 49
Figure 42 Portal Release B with additional features	. 50
Figure 43 Portable Demonstrator Experiment List	. 50
Figure 44 Node Exporter Results using Portable Demonstrator	. 51
Figure 44 VRM FOGUS App	. 51
Figure 46 UMA Apps	. 52
Figure 47 FOGUS DASH Client UI	. 53
Figure 48 DASH Client Results	. 53
Figure 49 5GENESIS portable demonstrator at Egaleo Stadium supporting 5G-enabled UAV trials	. 54
Figure 50. Round trip latency for C2 link and LTE	. 56
Figure 51 QGroundControl software deployed at the edge of the 5G system	. 58
Figure 52. 5G-UAS Architecture of automated flight trials	. 59
Figure 53. Coverage area with uplink and downlink values	. 59
Figure 54. Signal strength vs gNB distance	. 60

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1 Relevant deliverables	. 14
Table 2 Infrastructure layer components of the Portable Demonstrator	. 17
Table 3 Portable 5G Demonstrator Technology roadmap	. 18
Table 4 Performance Assessment Configuration	. 23
Table 5 DualBand Small Cell Panel Antenna Specifications	. 27
Table 6 UE features used in the end-to-end 4G setup	. 29
Table 7 eNB parameters for the end-to-end 4G setup	. 29
Table 8 Management and Orchestration Layer components	. 39
Table 9 the coordination layer components	. 41
Table 10 The 4G deployment configurations	. 45
Table 11 The 5G deployment configurations	. 46
Table 12. 5G NR configuration in the Portable Demonstrator	. 47
Table 13. Tested 5G UEs	. 48
Table 14. KPIs for c2 link	. 55
Table 15. Data rates for payload communications	. 56
Table 16. Latency For Payload Communications	. 56

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. Purpose of the Document

This document is the second document dedicated to the work performed in WP4 for the realization of the 5GENESIS portable demonstrator. The document serves as a reference point for the current status of the conducted integration activities, as well as a comprehensive descriptor of the functional and infrastructure components of the demonstrator. We note that the work reported in this document is linked to the activities of WP7 of the project (especially the dissemination and demonstration tasks) and as such, it can complement any participation in related events.

In the table below, the documents that have been released in the context of the 5GENESIS project are provided, including the relevance level with this document.

ID	Document title	Relevance
D2.1 [1]	Requirements of the Facility	The document sets the ground for the first set of requirements, related to the features that the platform should support and the Use Cases that should be tested.
D2.2 [2]	5GENESIS Overall Facility Design and Specifications	The 5GENESIS facility architecture is defined in this document. The list of functional components to be deployed in each testbed is defined.
D2.3 [3]	Initial planning of tests and experimentation	Testing and experimentation specifications that influence the testbed definition, operation and maintenance are defined.
D4.16/D4.17 [4]	The Portable 5G Demonstrator	D4.16 is the initial deliverable of the 5GENESIS Portable demonstrator. In D4.16, the focus was mainly on the description of the technologies and the different components that was available for the integration of the 5GENESIS portable demonstrator. In D4.17, the focus was on well- integrated setups and on the evolution of the developments for the portable demonstrator. Also, since D4.17 was a public deliverable, effort allocated to avoid strong correlation with the content in its predecessor (treated as confidential). Finally, in D4.18 we provide a reference document for the portable 5GENESIS demonstrator, together with the use-case specific development performed during 5G showcasing events, where the current infrastructure provided 5G connectivity.

Table 1 Relevant deliverables

D5.1/D5.2 [5]	System level tests and verifications	These documents provide guidelines, tests and software for the realization of the 5GENESIS facility coordination layer components, considering the two releases of the Open 5GENESIS Suite.
---------------	--------------------------------------------	------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

1.2. Structure of the Document

The document is composed of four sections where the second one includes the core technical aspects of the document. It includes a comprehensive overview of the 5GENESIS demonstrator, and separate subsections have been assigned to i) mobile network technologies i.e., the Radio Access Network (RAN) and core set ups, ii) the transport network and how it is emulated in the context of the demonstrator, and iii) the network management and control tools used to support experimentation and testing. The third section refers to the activities conducted for the evolution of the demonstrator across the three phases of the WP4, while it also discusses use-case specific developments, needed for the support of specific showcasing events. Finally, the fourth section includes the conclusions.

1.3. Target Audience

This document targets primarily the 5GENESIS consortium in order to be used as a reference document for the planning of WP5 and WP6 activities, but also aims at external non-5GENESIS-related people, either from other 5G-PPP projects or from the research community and the ICT industry. The document may help appreciate design decisions for the deployment of 5G components and evaluate the adoption and deployment progress of the 5G infrastructure. The deliverable will help that interested audience to:

- Be informed on the latest 5G developments of the portable demonstrator
- Be informed on the use-case specific developments needed to support vertical industrydriven showcasing events.
- Understand the requirements and risks for each deployed component within the portable demonstrator
- Facilitate technology selection and design decisions for their components
- Understand the limitations and restrictions in technology deployment and usage.

2. PORTABLE DEMONSTRATOR OVERVIEW

2.1. Target Deployment Overview

The Portable Demonstrator of the 5GENESIS project provides a mobile end-to-end platform for demonstration purposes in exhibitions and various events, as well as a fully functional tool that enables on-site testing and experimentation for vertical industries. The main principle of the development process for the 5GENESIS Portable Demonstrator refers to a compact and mobile platform that integrates all the necessary components needed to support 5G Experimentation as a Service.

To facilitate its portability and the feature of "on-site testing", the 5GENESIS Portable Demonstrator is realized with small form factor PC cases and laptops, while all the software and tools are onboarded in order to be self-contained and autonomous. However, the potential of connecting the infrastructure part of the 5GENESIS Portable Demonstrator with other 5G components, such as using different 5G core network or EPC provided by other vendors, is also feasible. This potential enables the support of new demonstration and benchmarking scenarios, which give to the portable demonstrator the value of a performance testing tool for 5G networks, a feature that is not widely available at the time of writing this deliverable.

Figure 1 depicts the physical components of the Portable 5G Demonstrator. It is noted that the diagram in Figure 1 includes the full set of physical components that are currently active for the development process, meaning that it shows commercial nodes, auxiliary PCs/monitors, as well as the nodes where open-source or project specific software is installed (e.g., OAI, WAN emulator etc.).



Figure 1 Physical diagram of the Portable Demonstrator

In terms of the functional components as of Open 5GENESIS Suite Release B (please refer to WP5 D5.2), the features of the Portable Demonstrator are:

- 5G NR radio front-end (eNB/gNB) and user equipment (UE), based on open source SDR and software components by ECM, as well as Commercial Off-The-Self (COTS) solutions (especially for commercial 5G mobile phones);
- 4G and 5G core functions, including both open source implementation by ECM (OAI) and commercial 5G core solutions (Amarisoft). Some third party open source implementations, such as Open5GS, Free5GC are also under testing, but currently not stable enough to support field trials;
- Coordinator layer components (w.r.t. the 5GENESIS reference Architecture) on top of NFV/SDN MANO stack.

2.2. Platform Infrastructure Layer

Table 2 includes the technical characteristics of the physical components that comprise the 5GENESIS Portable Demonstrator.

Component	Product/Technology	Mode of Implementation
LTE and 5G-NR UEs/CPEs	 5G NR UE: Dell G5 5587, i9-8950HK & USRP N310 (National Instruments) COTS 5G NSA/SA UEs (e.g. Samsung A90 5G, Samsung Galaxy Note 20, Google Pixel 5etc.) Waveshare SA/NSA 5G CPE Waveshare SA/NSA open 5G UE 4G UE: Commercial LTE mobile phones and dongles 	4G and 5G SA/NSA UEs
eNB/gNB	 OAI gNB: Dell G5 5587, i9-8950HK & USRP N310 (National Instruments) Amarisoft Callbox eNB & gNB (Amari Callbox Classic) OAI eNB: Dell Inspiron 5570 (i7-8550U CPU) & USRP B210 	LTE and 5G-NR Base Stations
10GbE Adapter Module between OAI based host PCs and SDRs	 2xThunderbolt-3 10GbE Adapter Module (Sonnet) 	Provides 10GbE Ethernet connectivity between the gNB/5G UE SDRs and the respective OAI PC hosts
EPC	• OAI vEPC: Dell Vostro 3470 (i7-8700	4G Evolved Packet Core
5GC	• Amarisoft EPC & 5GC (Athens Platform)	5G New Core
Transport Network Emulator	Intel NUC 6i7KYK	
Switch	Generic Top-of-the-Rack Switch	

Table 2 Infrastructure	laver components	of the Portable	e Demonstrator
	layer components		

Traffic Generators for performance / benchmarking / monitoring	iPerfPingSpeedtest	Testing and Measurement
Router	• Cisco RV180	Router for external connectivity

2.2.1. Mobile Network Technology

The 4G and 5G RAN and Core open-source solutions provided by ECM (OAI software) have been integrated in the Portable 5G Demonstrator and will continue to be updated as more functionalities become gradually available in the course of 5GENESIS. The inclusion of an open-source solution in the Portable Demonstrator serves mainly for showcasing its significant efficiency in RAN and Core design from both innovation and cost perspectives to appropriate target audiences, given that there is a trend towards open interfaces. It is also an approach that allows for the full integration of the management and coordination layer of the 5GENESIS reference architecture, i.e., the layers that enable the run of automated and controlled tests. As an alternative solution for demonstration purposes with commercial 5G COTS UEs, the Portable 5G Demonstrator adopts the Amarisoft Callbox Classic¹. All the approaches are described in the following subsections, while the roadmap for the three integration cycles of the project (phases) is summarized in Table 3.

	Mobile Core Product	Radio Access Products	UE			
	OAI vEPC	OAI eNodeB	Commercial 4G			
Phase 1	Athonet EPC	OAI eNodeB	Commercial 4G/4G Dongle			
	N/A	OAI gNodeB	OAI nr-UE/SDR ETTUS			
Phase 2	Commercial EPC/5GC (Amarisoft Athens Platform Solution)	Commercial eNodeB/gNodeB (Amarisoft Athens Platform Solution)	Commercial 5G UE (Amarisoft Athens Platform)			
Phase 3	OAI vEPC/ Commercial EPC/Amaristoft 5GC	OAI gNodeB	Commercial SA/NSA 5G/OAI NR- UE			
	Commercial Solution adopted by Athens Platform					

Table 3 Portable 5G Demonstrator Technology roadmap

 $^{^{1}\,}https://www.amarisoft.com/app/uploads/2019/09/Amari_Callbox_classic.pdf$

2.2.1.1. OAI-based 5G NSA end-to-end setup

5G NR setup

The 5GENESIS Portable Demonstrator has integrated the 5G RAN open-source solution provided by ECM. The setup has been implemented bearing high processing power and portability in mind, satisfying the Portable Demonstrator's requirements. ECM's OAI application implements the NR features at the gNB and UE side (the so-called nrUE component in OAI) in compliance to the Rel.15 Standards. It also provides utilities for debugging, monitoring and demonstration purposes.

The OAI gNB and OAI nrUE software runs on top of two laptops with overclocked i9-proceesors, in order to support the high processing requirements of the OAI software. The software implements the whole chain of signal processing functions of the 5G-NR protocol stack, ranging from the physical to the higher layers of the RAN protocol stack.

The ETTUS USRPs N300 convert the RF signal to and from baseband using analog filtering, digital up and down conversion circuits. They feed the signal through 10GbE SFPs, which are required to support the sampling rates of 5G-NR (61.44Ms/s and 122.88Ms/s, depending on the 5G configuration). The laptops are connected to the USRPs with 10GbE-Thunderbolt3 adapters, capable of supporting the required rates.



Figure 2 5G NR Setup of the Portable Demonstrator

The connection between the two USRPs takes place either over-the-air or wire with proper attenuators to protect the radio frequency units. The supported bandwidths are 40, 80 and 100

MHz (106, 217 and 273 Physical Resource Blocks (PRBs) respectively) and the frequency band of operation is 3.5GHz. When transmitting over-the-air in areas with assigned license, the USRPs shall utilize a set of omnidirectional antennas, while the proper transmission and reception gains of the SDRs will be configured through the OAI application.



Figure 3 Antennas gain plots on 3.5GHz²

The ETTUS USRPs are synchronized with the Octoclock-G Clock Distribution Module³, providing 8 pulse per second and 10MHz reference signals for time and frequency synchronization. The reference signals of the Octoclock-G are generated either by an internal GPS-disciplined, oven-controlled crystal oscillator or an external source.



Figure 4 Octoclock-G Clock Distribution Module

The OAI gNB and OAI nrUE laptop hosts have been configured with Ubuntu 18.04 LTS and 5.0.0.25-low-latency kernel version.

5G RAN monitoring takes place using the *T-Tracer* and *XForms* utilities. The figure below depicts the XForms application running in the nrUE laptop, providing information on the received signal (both control and data channels at the physical layer).

² https://gr.mouser.com/datasheet/2/238/ant-lte-mon-1659497.pdf

³ https://www.ettus.com/all-products/octoclock-g/

Activit	ies 🗇 XForm 🔻	Пар 18:10 •	
"	oai5g1@oai5g1: ~/openairinterface5g-n	r-ip-over-lte-v.1.4/cmake targets/ran build/build	
	File Edit View Search Terminal Help	NR DL SCOPE UE	
	Information contract the second		
	[MAC] as carrier offset. 0	70	
	MAC] pdcch config sib1: 0		A
1	[MAC] cell barred: 1	2e+16 -	}
_	[MAC] intra frequency reselection: 1		
	[MAC] system frame number: 718		100 200
	[MAC] ssb index: 0	Received Signal (Time-Domain, dR) (Chang	el lapulse Response (samples, abs)
	[MAC] half frame bit: 0		or relates under to the rest and
	[MAC]	m-1	
	[MAC] [L2][IF MODULE][DL INDICATION][RX IND], MIB case Number of PDUs: 1	50 -	
_	[PHY] Start adjust sync slot = 0 no timing 0	40 -	
	[MAC] HI_UE_PROCESS_OCT AT MAC Layer with OCT_TOMATE2 (UL BWP 100, UL BWP 100) [DBUY] FILE A Frame 710 or things in the control 10 th		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
	[PHV] DISCH data recention at pr thi rv 1	0 400 800 1200	160 200
	[iiii] besch data recepción de infecelix. I	chamilies Prequency Response (Rc, ub)	
-0-	[PHY] DLSCH Decoding, harg pid 0 TBS 6784 G 10200 mcs 9 Nl 1 nb symb sch 9 nb rb 50		40
			28
-	[PHY] [UE 0] DLSCH: Setting ACK for nr_tti_rx 1 TBS 6784 mcs 9 nb_rb 50 harq_process->round 0		-20 -
	[PHY] [UE 0] DLSCH: Setting ACK for nr_tti_rx 1 (pid 0, round 0, TBS 6784)		-40 - 1
	[PHY] harq_pid: 0, TBS expected dlsch0: 6784, TBS expected dlsch1: 0	0 200 400 600 800	-40 -20 0 20 40
	[MAC] [L2][IF MODULE][DL INDICATION][RX_IND], Number of PDUs: 1	PBUH Log-Likelihood Katios (LLK, Mag)	PBCH 170 of MF Output
	[MAC] handle_dlsch at MAC layer		30 3 30 3 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30
	[MAC] [L2][IF MODULE][DL INDICATION][RX_IND], DLSCH case Number of PDUs: 1	-0,40	10-3
P- 1	[PHY] PBCH ChannelComp/LLR: frame.sLot 719.0	-0.60	-10-
	[MAC] [L2][IF MODULE][DL INDICATION][RX_IND], NUMBER OF PDUS: 1	-1.00	J 50 1 m
		0 20 40 60 80	-40 -20 0 20 40
		PICCH Log-Likelihood Ratios (LLR, mag)	PDCCH I/Q of MF Output
\sim			
	[MAC] [11][IE module][PHY_CONFIG]	the second s	1 🤛 📉 📥 📥
	[MAC] subcarrier spacing: 1	80 -	60-
 .	[MAC] ssb carrier offset: 0		
	[MAC] dmrs type A position: 0		
	[MAC] pdcch config sib1: 0		
	[MAC] cell barred: 1		
	[MAC] intra frequency reselection: 1	The second	-60 -60
	[MAC] system frame number: 719		
	[MAC] ssb index: 0	200 400 500	
	[MAC] half frame bit: 0	PISCH Log-Likelihood Ratios (LLR, nag)	PIISCH I/O of MF Output

Figure 5 5G-NR OAI Scope monitors detection of 5G NR physical channels

On the other hand, the T-tracer utility (Figure 6) includes the *textlog tracer* that provides timestamped logs for metrics defined by the user.

Activit	ies 🗈 Terminal 🔻	Пεµ 16:11 ●	
		oal5n1@oal5n1~./openairinterfare5n-pr-in-over-Ite-v1.4/make tarnets/ran build/build	
		ound records in Action and a state of the st	
		erminal Help	
		oai5q1@oai5q1: ~/openairinterface5q-nr-ip-over-lte-v.1.4/common/utils/T/tracer	
		File Edit View Search Terminal Help	
1		16:10:31.547100960: LEGACY MAC INFO log pdcch config sib1: 0	
_		16:10:31.547101143: LEGACY MAC INFO log cell barred: 1	
		16:10:31.547101487: LEGACY MAC INFO log intra frequency reselection: 1	
		16:10:31.547101716: LEGACY MAC INFO log system frame number: 575	
		16:10:31.547101960: LEGACY MAC INFO log ssb index: 0	
		16:10:31.547102137: LEGACY MAC INFO log half frame bit: 0	
0		16:10:31.547102372: LEGACY MAC INFO log	
		16:10:31.547102583: LEGACY MAC INFO log [L2][IF MODULE][DL INDICATION][RX IND]. MIB case Number of PDUs: 1	
_		16:10:31.547102990: LEGACY PHY INFO log start adjust sync slot = θ no timing θ	
=		16:10:31.557122141: LEGACY PHY INFO log PBCH ChannelComp/LLR: frame.slot 576.0	
		16:10:31.557162101: LEGACY MAC THEO LOG [L2][TE MODULE][DL INDICATION][RX IND]. Number of PDUS: 1	
_		16:10:31.557162432: LEGACY MAC INFO log [12][MAC] decode mib	
		16:10:31.557174586: LEGACY MAC INFO Log [11][IF module][PHY CONFIG]	
A		16:10:31.557174748: LEGACY MAC INFO log subcarrier spacing: 1	
		16:10:31.557175157: LEGACY MAC INFO log ssb carrier offset: 0	
		16:10:31.557175425: LEGACY MAC INFO log dmrs type A position: 0	
		16:10:31.557175665: LEGACY MAC INFO log pdcch config sib1: 0	
		16:10:31.557175847: LEGACY MAC INFO log cell barred: 1	
		16:10:31.557176072: LEGACY MAC INFO log intra frequency reselection: 1	
	[RRC] MIB PDU : 6	16:10:31.557176259: LEGACY MAC INFO log system frame number: 576	
►	[RRC] MIB PDU : 5	16:10:31.557176461: LEGACY MAC INFO log ssb index: 0	
	[RRC] MIB PDU : 0	16:10:31.557176636: LEGACY MAC INFO log half frame bit: 0	
	[RRC] MIB PDU : 6	16:10:31.557176806: LEGACY MAC INFO log	
2		16:10:31.557176942: LEGACY MAC INFO log [L2][IE MODULE][DL_INDICATION][RX_IND], MIB case Number of PDUS: 1	
a,		16:10:31.557177324: LEGACY PHY INFO log start adjust sync slot = θ no timing θ	
_		16:10:31.567092075: LEGACY PHY INFO log PBCH ChannelComp/LLR: frame.slot 577.0	
_		16:10:31.567138464: LEGACY MAC INFO log [L2][IF MODULE][DL INDICATION][RX IND], Number of PDUs: 1	
		16:10:31.567138890: LEGACY MAC INFO log [L2][MAC] decode mtb	
		16:10:31.567159866: LEGACY MAC INFO log [L1][IF module][PHY CONFIG]	
		16:10:31.567160148: LEGACY MAC INFO log subcarrier spacing: 1	
		16:10:31.567160690: LEGACY MAC INFO log ssb carrier offset: 0	
		16:10:31.567160983: LEGACY MAC INFO log dmrs type A position: 0	
		16:10:31.567161150: LEGACY MAC INFO log pdcch config sib1: 0	
		16:10:31.567161373: LEGACY MAC INFO log cell barred: 1	
_		16:10:31.567161619: LEGACY MAC INFO log intra frequency reselection: 1	
		16:10:31.567161785: LEGACY MAC INFO log system frame number: 577	
		16:10:31.567162051: LEGACY MAC INFO log ssb index: 0	
		16:10:31.567162216: LEGACY MAC INFO log half frame bit: 0	
	[RRC] MIB PDU : 7	16:10:31.567162414: LEGACY MAC INFO log	

Figure 6 OAI Textlog T-tracer timestamped logs on the OAI gNB and nrUE

In Release B of the Portable Demonstrator, there have been IP-based connectivity tests between the OAI gNB and the OAI nr-UE, using iPerf and ping utilities (Figure 7). For the realization of these tests, a special mode (noS1) has been integrated in OAI, as an intermediate step until the complete NSA developments in OAI become available in Release C, as reported in this deliverable. The noS1 mode allowed in phase 2 to preconfigure the required parameters for data-plane communications (Data radio bearer, PDCP and RLC entities, IP interfaces) and establish an IP communication link between the gNB and the nrUE, without having an actual RRC Connection establishment and UE attachment to the core network. In phase 3, the noS1

mode was replace with proper S1 connectivity with OAI EPC, and the NSA 5G OAI-based system was properly assessed in terms of performance, as the following subsection reports.

Activit		Πε	16:40		
-	oai5g2@				
- 🛃	File Edit View Search Terminal Help	Low Disk Space on "Filesystem The volume "Filesystem root"	i root" has only 384 3 MB disk snare		
	(MAC) [12][TE NODULE][OL THOTCATION][DV THD] HTD care Number of DDUCL 1	remaining.		52126 h ani 5a2 5001 L UDD	Jenath 1479
	[PNV] start adjust sing slot = 0 on timing 0			52126 > 0a1502 5001: UDP	length 1470
	[MAC] nr ue process dci at MAC laver with dci format=2 (DL BWP 106, UL BW	Examine	Ignore	52126 > oai5g2.5001: UDP.	length 1470
1	[PHY] [UE A] Composition and the found of occurs		16:40:43.503941 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oai5g2.5001: UDP.	length 1470
_	(PHY) DLSCH oai5g2@oai5g2: ~		16:40:43.513852 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oa15g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
	File Edit View Search Terminal Help		16:40:43.533949 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oa15g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
	[PHY] DLSCH 3] 12 0.13 0 sec 90 4 KBytes 659 Kbits/sec 7 278 ms 0/	56 (0%)	16:40:43.554069 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oai5g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
	Segment 0 CRCL 31 13.0-14.0 Sec 80.4 KBytes 659 Kbtts/sec 6.952 ms 0/	55 (0%)	16:40:43.573882 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oai5g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
	[PHY] [UE 6] 3] 14.0-15.0 sec 80.4 KBytes 659 Kbits/sec 7.042 ms 6/	56 (0%)	16:40:43.593871 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oa15g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
	[PHY] bare [3] 15.0-16.0 sec 80.4 KBytes 659 Kblts/sec 7.170 ms 0/	56 (0%)	16:40:43.603905 IP 10.0.1.1	52120 > 041592.5001: UDP,	length 1470
_	[MAC] [121[3] 16.0-17.0 sec 81.8 KBytes 670 Kbits/sec 7.340 ms 0/	57 (0%)	16:40:43.623934 IP 10:0.1.1	52126 > 0al5g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
	[Mac] bandl[3] 17.0-18.0 sec 80.4 KBytes 659 Kbits/sec 6.996 ms 0/	56 (0%)	16:40:43.663940 TP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oa1502.5001: UDP.	length 1470
	[MAC] [L2][3] 18.0-19.0 sec 80.4 KBytes 659 Kbits/sec 7.056 ms 0/	56 (0%)	16:40:43.673864 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oai5g2.5001: UDP.	length 1470
_	[PHY] [3] 19.0-20.0 Sec 80.4 KBytes 659 Kblts/sec 7.202 ms 0/	56 (0%)	16:40:43.693845 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oai5g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
0	[MAC] [L2][[3] 20.0-21.0 Sec 80.4 KBytes 659 KDits/Sec 7.327 Ms 0/	55 (0%)	16:40:43.713930 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oa15g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
A	[MAC] [L2][[3] 22.0-22.0 Sec 70.0 KBytes 047 Kbits/sec 7.070 Hs 0/	55 (0%)	16:40:43.733955 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oai5g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
	[RRC] MIB PDU 3] 23.0-24.0 sec 80.4 KBytes 659 Kbits/sec 7.151 ms 0/	56 (0%)	16:40:43.753992 IP 10.0.1.1	52126 > oa15g2.5001: UDP,	Length 1470
-	[RRC] MIB PDU 3] 24.0-25.0 sec 80.4 KBytes 659 Kbits/sec 7.230 ms 0/	56 (0%)	16:40:43.763899 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oa15g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
(2)	[RRC] MIB PUC 3] 25.0-26.0 sec 80.4 KBytes 659 Kbits/sec 7.369 ms 0/	56 (0%)	10:40:43.783971 IP 10.0.1.1	52120 > 081592.5001: UDP,	length 1470
	[MAC] [LL][3] 26.0-27.0 sec 80.4 KBytes 659 Kbits/sec 7.355 ms 1/	57 (1.8%)	16:40:43.803939 IP 10:0.1.1	52126 > 0at5g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
_	[MAC] sobce[3] 27.0-28.0 sec 80.4 KBytes 659 Kbits/sec 7.157 ms 6/	56 (0%)	16:40:43.843997 TP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oa1502.5001: UDP.	length 1470
a	[MAC] dmrs [3] 28.0-29.0 sec 80.4 KBytes 659 Kbits/sec 7.270 ms 0/	56 (0%)	16:40:43.854016 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oa1502.5001: UDP.	length 1470
	[MAC] pdcch[3] 29.0-30.0 sec 80.4 KBytes 659 Kblts/sec 6.905 ms 0/	56 (0%)	16:40:43.873950 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oai5q2.5001: UDP.	length 1470
	[MAC] cell [3] 30.0-31.0 Sec 80.4 KBytes 659 KDIts/Sec 7.049 Ms 0/	56 (0%)	16:40:43.893872 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oal5g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
	[MAC] intra 3] 31.0-32.0 Sec 80.4 KBytes 059 Kbits/sec 7.142 MS 0/	50 (0%)	16:40:43.914013 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oai5g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
r- 1	[MAC] syster 3] 33.0-34.0 sec 80.4 KBytes 659 Kbtts/sec 7.323 ms 6/	56 (0%)	16:40:43.923946 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oai5g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
	[MAC] ssb [3] 34.0-35.0 sec 81.8 KBytes 670 Kbits/sec 7.083 ms 0/	57 (0%)	16:40:43.943982 IP 10.0.1.1	52126 > oai5g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
	[MAC] half		16:40:43.963926 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > 0a15g2.5001: UDP,	Length 1470
	[MAC] [12][IS MODIUSIED INDICATIONIED IND. HTR CORE Number of POLICE 1		16:40:43.983988 IP 10.0.1.1	52126 > 0at5g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
	[PHY] start adjust sync slot = 0 no timing 0		16:40:44.013978 TP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oat5g2.5001: UDP.	length 1470
	[MAC] or us process dct at MAC layer with dct format=2 (DL BWP 106, UL BWP 10	36)	16:40:44.033949 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oa1502.5001: UDP.	length 1470
	[PHY] [UE 0] Frame 918, nr_tti_rx 1: found 1 DCIs		16:40:44.053981 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oai5g2.5081: UDP,	length 1470
	[PHY] DLSCH data reception at nr_tti_rx: 1		16:40:44.073869 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oai5g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
			16:40:44.083897 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oal5g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
	[PHY] DLSCH Decoding, harq_pid 0 TBS 6784 G 10200 mcs 9 Nl 1 nb_symb_sch 9 nb	o_rb 50	16:40:44.103993 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oa15g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
	Segnent 0 CRC OK		16:40:44.123938 IP 10.0.1.1	52126 > oai5g2.5001: UDP,	Length 1470
	[PHY] [UE 0] DESCH: Setting ACK for mr_ttl_rx 1 TBS 6784 mcs 9 mb_rb 50 harg	process-sround 0	10:40:44.143935 IP 10.0.1.1		Length 1470
	[PHY] barg pid: 8 TBS expected disch8: 6784 TBS expected disch1: 6		16:40:44.103965 IP 10.0.1.1	52126 > 0at5g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
	[MAC1 [12][TE MODULEI[DL_INDICATIONIERY IND], Number of RDUS: 1		16:40:44.194015 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > pai5g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
	[MAC] handle dlsch at MAC laver		16:40:44,213906 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oa1502.5001: UDP.	length 1470
	[MAC] [L2][IF MODULE][DL INDICATION][RX IND], DLSCH case Number of PDUs: 1		16:40:44.233930 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oai5g2.5001: UDP.	length 1470
	[PHY] PBCH ChannelComp/LLR: frame.slot 919.0		16:40:44.243971 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oai5g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
			16:40:44.264026 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oal5g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
	[PHY] start adjust sync slot = 0 no timing 0		16:40:44.283872 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oa15g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
	[PHY] PBCH ChannelComp/LLR: frame.slot 920.0		16:40:44.304016 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oai5g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
	[PHY] [UE 0] frame 920, nr_tti_rx 0, Error decoding PBCH!		16:40:44.323942 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oai5g2.5001: UDP,	length 1470
	[PHY] start adjust sync slot = 0 no timing 0		16:40:44.333985 IP 10.0.1.1	.52126 > oal5g2.5001: UDP,	Length 1470
	[Phy] PBCH ChannelComp/LLK: Frame.SLOT 921.0		10:40:44.354028 IP 10.0.1.1	52126 > 081592.5001: UDP,	Length 1470
•••	[PHV] start adjust succ slot - A no timing A		16:40:44 303037 TP 18 8 1 1	52126 > 0at5g2.5001: UDP,	Jength 1478
			Π		tenyth z rev

Figure 7 Ping and iPerf tests between OAI gNB and OAI nr-UE

Mobile Core Network

In release C of the portable demonstrator, the noS1 mode was replaced with the integration of the Eurecom's OAI Core Network solution as Mobile Core Network of the Portable Demonstrator. The code is implementing all basic functions of the Long-Term Evolution (LTE) core components (Mobility Management Entity (MME), Home Subscriber Server (HSS), Serving PDN GateWay (SPGW)). OAI Core Network solution is divided in two projects:

- openair-cn, implementing HSS and MME functions
- openair-cn-cups, implementing the separation of user and control plane functions of SPGW (SPGWU, SPGWC).

OAI implements the core network components and the respective interfaces. In the Portable Demonstrator, in order to follow the principles of Network Slicing concept, every core component is thought as a separate VNF. As a result, all core components are deployed on different virtual machines.

Performance Evaluation of NSA 5G Portable Demonstrator

The OAI end-to-end NSA setup is composed from the eNB and gNB components, the OAI CN and a 5G NSA supporting COTS UE, which in this case is the Google Pixel 5. The different performance evaluation measurements are based on testing with different Modulation Coding Schemes (MCS), which have a direct impact on the Downlink (DL) throughput performance. The current release of the portable demonstrator reaches up to 75 Mbps for MCS 24 for DL (Table 4). This performance ranges around the theoretical expected values, considering the configurations made. The Uplink (UL) throughput is currently up to 7.15 Mbps regardless of the MCS scheme. Same for Round-Trip-Time (RTT) latency measurements with ping which was measured on average 14-14.5 ms.



Figure 8 DL (Mbps) assessment at MCS 24/15/9

Regarding the setup, this is on Frequency Range 1 (FR1, band 78) for the gNB based on Time Division Duplex (TDD), 30kHz subcarrier spacing, 106 PRB (40MHz), Single-Input Single-Output (SISO).

Table 4 Performance Assessment Configuration

CS	Qm (Modulation Order)	Modulation Scheme	DL Throughput
9	2	QPSK	24 Mbps
15	4	16-QAM	44 Mbps
24	6	64-QAM	75 Mbps

2.2.1.2. Commercial 5G SA/NSA setup

(a) Amarisoft Callbox Classic

As already mentioned, a key principle of the 5GENESIS portable demonstrator is to examine multiple set-ups in a modular way to enhance the variety of test cases and experiments that the 5GENESIS portable demonstrator can support. The Amarisoft Callbox Classic is one of the commercial solutions deployed in the Athens Platform and provides the capability of demonstrating a complete 5G implementation. In phase 2 the NSA configuration had fully deployed and tested, while in phase 3 the SA configuration was also provided and properly validated with both COTS UEs and open-source CPEs/UEs. On top of this implementation 5GENESIS-specific features are being added to enable slice management and automated experimentation capabilities. In addition, the currently available web interface for monitoring the parameters of the system, is being enriched with Grafana and Prometheus tools.



Figure 9 Amarisoft Callbox Classic and Samsung A90 5G

€ → ୯ 🍙										0	J ☆	👱 IIN 🗉 🛛 🔤 🔤 🕒 🛱 👬
Amarisoft LTE Web GUI 2019-11-27		🗎 Logs: 4067	🗄 MME	🚮 Stats								
URL Add server Load file	Export	UL/DL	" Layer	~ U	ID	- Cell ID	×	info		r Level ~	Clear Filter	Click on a row to see it's content here.
🔨 🥝 📮 🔘 🚽	×	Time origin: 00	:00:00.000 G	roup UE ID:								
▼ ECBC-2019112201		3 💠 🔿	A A 1	Search		8		1 🖬	Analytics	🙀 RB 📄 UE Cap		
IN INS		Time	Diff	ENB	MME	UE ID C	Cell SFN	RNTI	Info	Message	1	
v III I wa		17:46:14.211	+25.048		NAS	291			EMM	Service request		
anb0 log 🚱		17:46:27.003	+12.792		NAS	291			ESM	PDN disconnect re	quest	
@ mme.log					NAS	291			ESM	Deactivate EPS be	arer context	
		17:46:27.083	+0.080		NAS	291			ESM	Deactivate EPS be	arer context	
		17:46:30.203	+3.120		NAS	291			ESM	PDN connectivity r	equest 🖲 💿	
				4	NAS	291			ESM	Activate default EP	S bearer co	
		17:46:30.283	+0.080		NAS	291			ESM	Activate default EP	S bearer co	
		17:47:07.643	+37.360		NAS	291			ESM	PDN disconnect re	questo	
					NAS	291			ESM	Deactivate EPS be	arer context	
		17:47:07.724	+0.081		NAS	291			ESM	Deactivate EPS be	arer context	
		17:47:07.882	+0.158		NAS	291			EMM	Detach request		
		17:47:12.236	+4.354	STAP						Connecting to 127.	0.1.100:364	
		17:47:13.563	+1.327	SIAP						Connected to 127.	1.100:364	
				SIAP .						127.0 1 100 36412	S1 setup re	
		17-47-14 555	+0.992	STAP 4						127.0.1.100:36412	S1 eaturs re	
		17:47:17 798	+3 243	PHY			1 324.4		PRACH	semence index=4	0 ta=1 enr=	
		11.41.11.190	10.240	MAC		1	4		Treton	Allocation new UE	0 10-1 010-	
		17:47:17 700	+0.001.4	MAC			1			Participation of the second se		
		17:47:17.739	10.001	DHIX			1 224.0		DDCCH	hours apio-40	at a factor	
				PHI			1 324.9	0.5	PDSCH	harq=si type=2 ib_	start=01_cr	
		-	•	PHY			1 324.9	0.5	PUCCH	cce_index=u/s L=4	dci=1a0	
		17:47:17.809	+0.010	PHY		1	1 325.5	0.030	PUSCH	narq=/ type=u ro_s	itan=31_cit	
			*	MAC		1	1			LCID:0 lien=6 PAD:	len=2	
			*	HHC		1	1		CCCH	RRC Connection R	equest	
			*	RRC		1	1		CCCH	RRC Connection S	etup	
			*	PHY		1	1 325.9	0×3d	PHICH	group=3 seq=0 hi=	1	

Figure 10 Amarisoft Web Interface

(b) Amarisoft Callbox mini

Packaged in a plug and play integrated PC, AMARI Callbox Mini is an ideal solution for 4G/5G testing of all types of UEs with advanced configuration. It acts as a 3rd Generation Partnership Project (3GPP) compliant eNodeB, gNodeB, EPC and 5GC allowing functional and performance testing of NR (SA mode), LTE, LTE-A, LTE-M and NB-IoT devices.



Figure 11 Amarisoft Callbox Mini

An integrated IMS server as well as an Evolved Multimedia Broadcast Multicast Services (eMBMS) gateway for VoLTE and eMBMS testing is also available, enhancing further the capabilities of the ultra-portable branch of the 5GENESIS demonstrator for supporting various use-cases and showcasing events in the field. AMARI Callbox Mini is a very compact solution, designed to be used everywhere. From lab to exhibition show, this is the ideal product for NB-IoT, CATM1, CATO to CAT4 UEs testing.

(c) Raspberry Pi-based SA/NSA 5G UE

This 5G/4G/3G Raspberry Pi communication HAT adopts SIMCom 5G module SIM8200EA-M2, supporting 5G NSA and SA networking and data rates up to 2.4 Gbps (DL) / 500 Mbps (UL).





Figure 12 SIM8200EA-M2 5G HAT UE

The base board features standard M2 connector, allows connecting with different 4G or 5G communication module with M2 package. There are also USB3.1 port, audio jack and decoder, SIM card slot, etc. Allowing the deployment of configurations script and programming code, the "open" SA/NSA UE allows the demonstration and showcasing of various apps and modules with 5G connection. 5G HAT supports a wide range of the frequency bands, both at SA and NSA mode:

Sub-6G (SA): n1, n2, n3, n5, n7, n8, n12, n20, n28, n38, n40, n41, n48, n66, n71, n77, n78, n79 Sub-6G (NSA) n41, n77, n78, n79

SIM card slot, supports 2FF standard SIM cards Status indicator: showing operating/network statuses Port indicator: showing WiFi/Ethernet statuses USB-C Port S Mounting fet Sigabit Ethernet/Power Supply

(d) 5G CPE

Figure 13 Qualcomm Snapdragon X55 CPE

The 5G CPE wireless router uses the Qualcomm Snapdragon X55 modem and converts 5G network into Gigabit Ethernet, USB 3.1, and WiFi 6, allowing the 5G connectivity with products that are not providing a 5G model as an option, but other network interfaces are available, such as ethernet, USB, wifi etc. The Qualcomm Snapdragon X55 5G Modem-RF System is a comprehensive modem-to-antenna solution designed to allow OEMs to build 5G multimode devices. The 5G CPE supports 5G SA and NSA and global multiple frequency band. Suitability for experimentation where high speed 5G network access are required, like: AI robot/drone, industrial IoT, outdoor live streaming, automotive devices.

(e) DualBand Small Cell Panel Antenna combined with PAs/LNAs

In order to enhance the coverage capabilities of the 5GENESIS portable demonstrator in the field, there is also the option of using an external small cell antenna together with PAs and LNAs. The CCI Dualband 65° x 65° array is an eight port Small Cell antenna, with four wide band ports covering 1695-2690 MHz and four wide band ports covering 3400-3800 MHz.



Figure 14 DualBand Small Cell Panel Antenna

The CCI 65° x 65° Small Cell antenna provides two independent sets of 2x2 Multiple-input-Multiple-output (MIMO) functionality across the 1695-2690 MHz and 3400-3800 MHz ports.

Table 5 DualBand Small Cell Panel Antenna Specifications

Ports		4 × High Band Ports for 1695-2690 MHz					
Frequency Range	1695-1880 MHz	1850-1990 MHz	1920-2180 MHz	2300-2400 MHz	2496-2690 MHz	3400-3800 MHz	
Gain	10.9 dBi	11.0 dBi	11.2 dBi	11.3 dBi	11.5 dBi	7.8 dBi	
Gain (Average) ²	9.5 dBi	9.6 dBi	9.9 dBi	10.3 dBi	10.5 dBi	7.4 dBi	
Azimuth Beamwidth (-3dB)	67°	69°	69°	70°	71°	73°	
Elevation Beamwidth (-3dB)	47°	45°	43°	38°	34°	72°	
Electrical Downtilt	4°	4°	4°	4°	4°	0°	
Elevation Sidelobes (1st Upper)	< -18 dB	< -19 dB	< -18 dB	< -12 dB	< -11 dB	NA	
Cross-Polar Discrimination (at Peak)	> 21 dB	> 19 dB	> 20 dB	> 19 dB	> 19 dB	> 19 dB	
Front-to-Back Ratio @180°	> 35 dB	> 34 dB	> 35 dB	> 35 dB	> 35 dB	> 35 dB	
Cross-Polar Port-to-Port Isolation	> 25 dB	> 25 dB	> 25 dB	> 25 dB	> 25 dB	> 25 dB	
Voltage Standing Wave Ratio(VSWR)	< 1.5:1	< 1.5:1	< 1.5:1	< 1.5:1	< 1.5:1	< 1.5:1	
Passive Intermodulation (2×20W)	≤ -153 dBc	≤ -153 dBc	≤ -153 dBc	≤ -153 dBc	≤ -153 dBc	NA	
Input Power Continuous Wave (CW)	100 watts	100 watts	100 watts	100 watts	100 watts	50 watts	
Polarization	Dual Pol 45°	Dual Pol 45°	Dual Pol 45°	Dual Pol 45°	Dual Pol 45°	Dual Pol 45°	
Input Impedance	50 ohms	50 ohms	50 ohms	50 ohms	50 ohms	50 ohms	
Lightning Protection	DC Ground	DC Ground	DC Ground	DC Ground	DC Ground	DC Ground	

¹Peak gain across sub-bands. ²Electrical specifications follow document "Recommendation on Base Station Antenna Standards" (BASTA) V9.6.

The pattern of the antenna covers a wide area both at the vertical and horizontal axis.



Figure 15 Typical Pattern of the DualBand Small Cell Panel Antenna at 3.6GHz

Moreover, the power of the 5G signal can be amplified by using a portable set of Power Amplifiers (PA) and Low Noise Amplifiers (LNA) that have been properly set up within a portable case. The PA amplifies when the 5G system transmitting, while the LNA amplifies when the system is receiving. For duplexed signal, passive duplexer shifts between the two on Rx/Tx.



Figure 16 PAs and LNAs configured within the portable case

2.2.1.3. OAI-based End-to-End 4G setup

RAN features

The 4G RAN of the Portable Demonstrator is implemented with the open-source OpenAirInterface RAN (OAI-RAN) solution, provided from Eurecom. The 4G eNB component consists of an ETTUS USRP B210 SDR⁴, with VERT 900 antennas attached, connected via USB3.0 to an Intel Core i7-8550U CPU @ 1.80GHz x 4 Dell laptop, deploying OAI RAN functions⁵. All

⁴ The version of software driver for the USRP used is 3.13.1.

⁵ The code is taken from Eurecom's "openairinterface5g" repo (master branch, commit "7af84127")

functions are running on Ubuntu 18.04 operating system with Linux 4.15.0-72 low latency kernel. The eNB node uses a physical interface through which it is connected to the OAI EPC.



Figure 17 The end-to-end 4G set up

The 4G UEs are implemented with COTS mobile phones and dongles (Figure 18). The UE is registered to the OAI EPC using (U)SIM cards provided by Sysmocom. The cards have been configured / programmed using pySim-prog, a command line utility that is used to modify identities and private key data in SIM cards. A list of the available COTS UEs used in our implementation, and the adopted frequencies for transmission are outlined below, in Table 6 and Table 7, respectively.

UEs	Features
1 x Huawei E3372 (USB Dongle)	Cat4 (DL: 150 Mbps/UL: 50 Mbps at 20 MHz), LTE FDD Bands: 800/900/1800/2100/2600
1 x Samsung Galaxy S4	Cat3 compatible Smart Phones (100/50)
1 x Samsung Galaxy Note 3	Cat4 compatible Smart Phones (150/50)

Table 6 UE features used in the end-to-end 4G setup

Table 7 eNB parameters for the end-to-end 4G setup

eNB parameters	Values
LTE Band	7
DL Frequency (MHz)	2685
UL Frequency (MHz)	2565
DL NRB	25



Figure 18 The LTE dongle used in the 4G set up

UE attachment

To attach a UE in the network, we first have to set our network's Access Point Name (APN) on the device. In the case of the Huawei dongle, we configure the APN from the dongle's portal. The portal can be accessed when the USB is attached to the machine. Otherwise, if an LTE smart phone is used, then the APN can be added from the phone settings. When the APN is set, the device scans for LTE networks nearby, and then the user decides to which networks she/he wants to be connected. The figure provided below depicts the dongle's portal results when the device connects to our network.



Figure 19 The established connection from the LTE Dongle in the 4G setup

RAN Monitoring

The OAI T-Tracer has been used for monitoring purposes. The figure below depicts T-Tracer results from the eNB, providing information on the received signal, uplink and downlink channels, as well as the packets of the network layers transmitted and received.



Figure 20 The T-tracer results as retrieved from the eNB

Features of the Mobile Core Network

The Mobile Core Network of the Portable Demonstrator is integrated by the open-source Eurecom's OAI Core Network solution. The code is implementing all basic functions of the LTE core components (MME, HSS, SPGW). OAI Core Network solution is divided in two projects:

- openair-cn, implementing HSS and MME functions
- openair-cn-cups, implementing the separation of user and control plane functions of SPGW (SPGWU, SPGWC)

OAI implements the core network components and respective interfaces, as shown in the figure below.



Figure 21 The components and the interfaces of the setup as provided by OAI

The MME, SPGWC, SPGWU and HSS communicate with each other via the following interfaces:

- MME and SGWC via S11-c
- MME and HSS via S6-a
- SGWC with PGWC via S5/S8
- SPGWU with PGWC via SXab
- SPGWU with eNB via S1-u
- SPGWU uses the SGi interface for internet connectivity

The hardware and software specifications of the OAI EPC deployment are detailed below:

- Dell Vostro 3470 (Intel i7-8700 CPU @ 3.20 GHz x 12, 16 GB RAM, 1TB Disk storage)
- CentOS Linux 7

In the Portable Demonstrator, in order to follow the principles of Network Slicing concept, every core component is thought as a separate VNF. As a result, all core components are deployed on different virtual machines. To accomplish this task, we use Openstack as NFV Infrastructure at out Dell host machine. The following guest Virtual Machines (VMs) were established:

- HSS
 - o Ubuntu 18.04.03 LTS
 - o Linux Kernel 4.15.0-74-generic
 - o 1 VCPU, 2GB RAM, 20 GB Disk
 - openair-cn master branch (commit "d1d0e45")
- MME
 - o Ubuntu 18.04.03 LTS
 - o Linux Kernel 4.15.0-74-generic
 - o 2 VCPU, 4GB RAM, 40 GB Disk
 - openair-cn master branch (commit "d1d0e45")
- SPGWC
 - o Ubuntu 18.04.02 LTS
 - o Linux Kernel 4.15.0-74-generic
 - o 2 VCPU, 4GB RAM, 40 GB Disk
 - o openair-cn-cups develop branch (commit "ec7a30c")
- SPGWU
 - o Ubuntu 18.04.02 LTS
 - o Linux Kernel 4.15.0-74-generic
 - o 2 VCPU, 4GB RAM, 40 GB Disk
 - openair-cn-cups develop branch (commit "ec7a30c")

Core virtual machines have one network interface each, in order to communicate with every other component. This interface is connected to the external network, provided by a physical router, giving our host machine internet access. Core LTE interfaces (S11, S6-a etc), are using the components' external addresses to communicate. Interface S5/S8 is implemented by defining a couple of virtual network interfaces in SPGWC VM. The figure below depicts the network topology of the core network.



Figure 22 The integrated network topology with the IPs used

A screenshot of the console, depicting the data flow in the core network, having all the core network components up and running, is provided in Figure 23.

ubur	tu@spawc:~\$ sudo spawc -c /usc/loca]/etc/pai/spow_c.conf
PGW	CONTEXT:	
	IMSI:	208931234561019
	IMSI UNAUTHENTICATED:	0
APN	CONTEXT:	
	In use:	1
	APN:	default openair4G驟ur
	APN AMBR Bitrate Uplink:	50000
	APN AMBR Bitrate Downlink:	100000
PDN	CONNECTION:	
	PDN type:	IPV4
	PAA IPv4:	12.1.1.2
	SGW FTEID S5S8 CP:	Interface type=S5_S8_SGW_GTP_C, TEID=1, IPv4=172.58.58.102
	PGW FTEID S5S8 CP:	Interface type=S5_S8_PGW_GTP_C, TEID=1, IPv4=172.58.58.101
	Default EBI:	5
	SEID: 4294967	297
EPS	BEARER:	
	EBI:	5
	TFT:	TODO tft
	SGW FTEID S5S8 UP:	null_fteid
	PGW FTEID S5S8 UP:	Interface type=S5_S8_PGW_GTP_U, TEID=1, IPv4=192.168.1.120
	Bearer QOS:	MBR UL=0, MBR DL=0, GBR UL=0, GBR DL=0, PCI=0, PL=0, PVI=0, QCI=0
	PDR ID UL:	1
	PDR ID DL:	
	PRECEDENCE:	0
	FAR ID UL:	1
PGW	CONTEXT:	
	IMST:	208931234561019
	IMSI UNAUTHENTICATED:	0
APN	CONTEXT:	
	In use:	1
	APN:	default openair4G驟ur
	APN AMBR Bitrate Uplink:	50000
	APN AMBR Bitrate Downlink:	100000
PDN	CONNECTION:	
	PDN type:	IPV4
	PAA IPv4:	12.1.1.2
	SGW FTEID S5S8 CP:	Interface type=S5_S8_SGW_GTP_C, TEID=1, IPv4=172.58.58.102
	PGW FTEID S5S8 CP:	Interface type=S5_S8_PGW_GTP_C, TEID=1, IPv4=172.58.58.101
	Default EBI:	5
	SEID: 4294967	297
EPS	BEARER:	
	EBI:	5
	SGW FTEID S558 UP:	null_fterd
	PGW FIEID SSS8 UP:	Interface type=55_58_PGW_GIP_0, TEID=1, 1Pv4=192.168.1.120
	Bearer QUS:	MBR UL=0, MBR DL=0, GBR UL=0, GBR DL=0, PCI=0, PL=0, PVI=0, QCI=0
	PDR ID UL:	
		2
	FAD TO UL	1
	PAR ID OL:	

Het.tpv4.conf.al het.ipv4.conf.de het.ipv4.conf.de het.ipv4.conf.de het.ipv4.conf.pd het.ipv4.conf.pd het.ipv4.conf.pd	l.forwa l.send fault. fault. fault. n.send n.accep cket Do	arding = _redirect send_redi pt_redire accept_re _redirect pt_redirect pt_redire tection	1 S = 0 rects = 0 ects = 0 edirects = S = 0 ects = 0 Rule list	0 ordered by e	stablished sessions:	tun id	t ray outer bdr	tun idi	IIF TP.v4
	-+		+		+			+	12 1 1 2
PFCP switch Pa	cket D	etection	Rule list	ordered by e	stablished sessions:				
SEID	pdr	+ far	predence	action	+ create outer hdr	tun id	+ rmv outer hdr	tun id	UE IPv4
	110001	+	+	ACC>>COR	+		GTPU UDP IPV4:	00000001	12.1.1.2

Figure 23 Console screenshots depicting the data flow in the core network

2.2.2. Transport Network

2.2.2.1. OpenDaylight-based emulator

The Portable 5G Demonstrator includes a WAN Emulator based on Mininet v2.2.2⁶ for emulating the transport network. The WAN emulator is utilized for demonstrating SDN capabilities and allowing the deployment of various WAN topologies within a single node. The following figure depicts an example topology implemented with Mininet and OpenDayLight as the SDN controller:



Figure 24 An example of Torus Topology in Mininet with ODL as external SDN Controller.

The physical machine (Intel NUC6i7KYK) runs Ubuntu Server and has three network interfaces. Two of them are assigned to Mininet in order to provide communication with external hosts and the third one is the Management interface.

Figure 25 demonstrates network traffic between Mininet hosts and physical machines deployed. The terminal depicts the physical host, acting as iPerf server while responding to

⁶ Mininet Emulator: http://mininet.org/

requests made by the Mininet host and another physical hosts. It is also possible to conduct iPerf measurements between two virtual Mininet hosts, as shown in Figure 26.



Figure 25: Traffic passing through Mininet



Figure 26 Mininet Console

2.2.2.2. Onos-based emulator with FOGUS SDN testbox

Apart from the OpenDayLight WAN Emulator, the portable 5G Demonstrator offers an Onosbased emulator with the addition of FOGUS SDN TestBox (Figure 27), that was developed during the third phase of the project. Its main functionality is the demonstration of a Software Defined Network with an interconnection between internet and physical nodes through a Mininet network. It provides network customization options regarding the parameters of the links and paths between the nodes, in order to simulate events and monitor the behavior of the network in an efficient way. The statistics for the network are shown in real-time views and stored in InfluxDB.



Figure 27 FOGUS SDN TestBox Start Page

The entire system runs on a Dell OptiPlex with Ubuntu 18.04 OS. The minimum requirements for running the system are 2 core CPUs, 8GB RAM, 50GB Disk Space and 2 NICs (for the interconnection of physical nodes).

The Figures below show the steps of SDN TestBox. At first (Figure 28), the user has the option of choosing between 3 different topologies for the desired network (Linear, Tree, Torus). Then (Figure 29), the network is created and the user chooses, which switch will be the Ingress and which the Egress in the network. In the steps 3 and 4 (Figure 30 & Figure 31), the user can configure the characteristics of each link, changing the values of parameters like the Bandwidth of the link and its Delay and/or change the path between the nodes of the network. In the final step, the user can monitor the network and see real-time statistics of each switch.









Figure 30 FOGUS SDN TestBox Link Configuration



Figure 31 FOGUS SDN TestBox Switch Configuration

The Statistics are, also, available to be seen on InfluxDB Dashboard (Figure 32), while the entire Topology can be seen, also, on ONOS GUI (Figure 33).

Figure 33 FOGUS SDN TestBox ONOS GUI

2.3. Management and Orchestration Layer

The Management and Orchestration layer of the portable demonstrator is responsible for the following actions:

- Creation of virtual network instances upon the physical network by using the resources and the functionality of the infrastructure layer.
- Mapping of network functions to virtualized network instances so that they build a service chain with the association of network function and virtualization layer.

 Maintaining communication between service/application, coordination layer and the network slicing framework to manage the lifecycle of virtual network instances and dynamically adapt or scale the virtualized resources according to the changing experimental context.

Component	Product/Technology
Katana Slice Manager	Release A implementation of the 5Genesis reference architecture Slice Manager implementation (WP3 component)
NFV MANO OSM	OSM ⁷ is an open source MANO aligned with the ETSI framework for NFV. OSM is an orchestration and management system which manages life-cycle, and configuration aspects of the hosted VNFs that are deployed on the wide number of supported NFV Infrastructure (NFVI) platforms. These MANO capabilities are critical to implement the sophisticated services expected by the 5G communication systems and utilize the underline management systems and tools. For the purpose of the 5GENESIS platform, the deployed OSM is of release 5 and is already integrated with the Element management systems and monitoring tools as well as the Virtualization Infrastructure Managers (Openstack).
Prometheus	Prometheus servers deployed in hierarchical mode are collecting aggregated time series data from a large number of subordinated servers and can be used to take measurements from any device on the platform by creating custom exporters that use the SNMP protocol
Grafana	Used for the visualization and analytics of the Prometheus metrics and supports a lot of presentation dashboards.
iPerf	Network Performance tool supporting modelling and replay of network traffic

Table 8 Management and Orchestration Layer components

Regarding the above technologies of the MANO Layer, the below hardware and software was used:

Host PC:

- Dell Vostro 3470
- CPU: Intel Core i7-8700 3.2GHz
- OS: Ubuntu 16.04.06 LTS

In the host pc, 3 VMs was created via the VM Manager for hosting all the MANO Layer's and Coordination Layer's components. The software and hardware that was selected and used in the 3 VMs, in listed below. Also, a set of figures is provided depicting the actual instances of the VMs (Figure 34), the OSM (Figure 35) and the Slice Manager (Figure 36).

⁷ OSM, https://osm.etsi.org/

VM for Katana Slice Manager:

- OS: Ubuntu 16.04.06 LTS
- Hardware: 2 vCPUs, 4GB RAM, 60GB Storage

VM for OSMv5:

- OS: Ubuntu 16.04.06 LTS
- Hardware: 2 vCPUs, 4GB RAM, 60GB Storage

VM for Coordination Layer, Prometheus, iPerf and Grafana:

- OS: Windows 10 Pro x64
- Hardware: 2 vCPUs, 2GB RAM, 50GB Storage

* Virtua	l Machine Manager – + ×
File Edit View Help	
🖳 🗏 Open 🕨 🔢 🕹 🔹	
Name	 CPU usage
★ GEWINANI	
Euroing	
DeenTap Running	
E GSMS Runny	Amana

Figure 34 MANO Layer VMs

	≡			➢ PortableVIMs ▼ S PortableOSM
MAIN NAVIGATION	PortableVIMs Overview			Home > Projects > PortableVIMs
希 Home	Project Name:	Portable//IMs		
		1 011001011110	U	
Cverview	Created:	15-01-2020 13:56:49	NS packages	VNF packages
	Modified:	15-01-2020 13:56:49	Open list 🕄	Open list 🕄
Packages	*			
NS Packages				
VNF Packages				
Solution States NetSlice Templates			NS Instances	VNF Instances
A Instances	~		Open list 😏	Open list 🕏
🚠 NS Instances				
VNF Instances				
🗇 PDU Instances				
📚 NetSlice Instances				
SDN Controllers				
E VIM Accounts	OSM			Open Source MANO

Figure 35 NFV MANO OSM

v Ela Vintuel Machina Vinu: Canel Vinu	KatanaSM on Q	2EMU/KVM	- + X
			ي ا
katanasn@katanasn:"/slice-manager\$ kat	ana vim add -f vim. ison		
5b29c76c-38d5-442c-b807-313df4c7529b			
katanasn@katanasn:"/slice-nanager\$ kat	ana vim ls		
VIH_ID	CREATED AT	TYPE	
56d2de9d-2004-40d8-aad3-7e484c42e331	2020-01-15 11:11:48	openstack	
5629C/0C-3845-442C-8697-313414C/5296	2020-01-20 12:23:29	openstack	
constraint 2413.461.47410	ana mito ana -r mitol. Json		
katanasn@katanasn:"/slice-nanager\$ kat	ana mfuo ls		
NFV0_ID	CREATED AT	TYPE	
d87a6fee-3cce-497e-a332-dccb19e68b37	2020-01-16 11:20:31	OSH	
c0eaf 390-7d33-4e61-a31f-ed204b4f2a89	2020-01-20 12:23:50	OSM	
katanasn@katanasni'/slice-nanager\$ kat	ana slice add -f slice.js	2011	
bhff 1b 15-38 (1-460) - a (3)-a (2) between a (3)-	ana olico lo		
SLIFE ID	CREATED AT	SUITOTS	
5[rdf]id-af94-4144-a213-1fc72bdf2fdb	2020-01-16 11:47:36	Placepeut	
171688c0-4b59-42fd-8f52-5d3b720ed3e4	2020-01-16 13:06:26	Placement	
ea7091a2-61eb-4c0c-be69-51cfae8846f6	2020-01-16 13:10:46	Placement	
be4bd4b8-7136-4cf2-bbcd-f92efebf65e0	2020-01-16 13:23:28	Placement	
2a32?daa-1391-4?a9-a10b-3a91ec2adf58	2020-01-16 13:26:18	Placement	
2c5c0115-bcc2-4f07-9aae-adc4a63f8c6b	2020-01-16 13:29:49	Placement	
Baber/012-19ad-91a3-BC31-723C21B091a3 011-1924 2421 412-5-100-10-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00-00	2020-01-20 09:01:34	Placement	
011C5304-3634-1970-810E-1C58626372270 0C4E1220.40EL_4-4E2268626372270	2020-01-20 03:05:40	Placement	
30131420 1030 1011 101 101 101 101 101 101 101	2020-01-20 09:10:44	Placeneut	
655fd187-b5e7-4b9c-aea0-002c2e3137e0	2020-01-20 09:16:25	Placement	
b7ebfa94-18ac-40b4-ac6e-a6342eaae42c	2020-01-20 09:22:56	Placement	
a985edec-911a-47b1-ab11-3fdedf1a8e97	2020-01-20 09:45:19	Placement	
13b9c828-3616-18e9-b616-5fe71b6d72ac	2020-01-20 09:46:49	Placement	
419433b4-4063-4af6-ab00-F93914010594	2020-01-20 09:54:09	Placement	
7e1c496d-5369-41c1-0069-ce0510e5191	2020-01-20-09:55:38	Placement	
0.5942.00	2020-01-20 10:13:36	Placement	
00336240************************************	2020-01-20 10:20:42	Placement	
900cBc2f-b9c1-4c63-b6e9-20f967af3f6c	2020-01-20 10:25:33	Placement	
14c5cf?1-811c-4dcd-9dbc-42500659f?46	2020-01-20 10:41:17	Placement	
6bff1615-38f8-4603-af98-dc35be852261	2020-01-20 12:24:03	Placement	
katanasn9katanasn:~/slice-nanager\$			

Figure 36 Katana Slice Manager

2.4. Coordination Layer

The Coordination Layer is common for all 5GENESIS platforms as defined in WP2 towards forming a Pan-European 5G Experimental Facility and this homogeneity applies also to the portable 5G demonstrator as well. The software components of the coordination layer are solely instantiated at each platform, i.e., an instance of them runs autonomously and independently at each platform, although their functional and architectural features remain the same, creating the basis towards a common 5GENESIS facility across the foreseen sites.

In order for the Portable Demonstrator to be self-contained, the Coordination Layer has also been included, providing the set of functionalities that would allow demonstrations of real-life tests to interested vertical industries and experimenters.

More details on the architectural components and functionalities of the coordination layer will be provided in WP3 and the corresponding deliverables. Regarding the activities of integrating the Coordination Layer in the portable demonstrator, the components depicted in the following table were installed in a single VM (one of the 3 VMs mentioned above, at Section 2.3)

Component	Description
5GENESIS Portal	Release A implementation of the 5GENESIS reference architecture. 5GENESIS Portal implementation (WP3 component)
Experiment Life Cycle Management	Release A implementation of the 5Genesis reference architecture ELCM implementation (WP3 component)
Keysight OpenTAP	Keysight's TAP commercial-off-the-self testing automation tool is used to implement the experiment life cycle management activities that are triggered by the vertical's requests through the portal or the open API.

Table 9 the coordination layer components

Results Repository / InfluxDB	InfluxDB is the open-source storage engine provided within the InfluxData framework, and handles in particular time series data and is used to store all monitoring events and metrics that are necessary for the generation of
	the end-reports and KPIs validation.

The Figures below show an overall presentation of the Coordination Layer starting from the Portal/ELCM interaction through testing, analyzing, storing and displaying data.

Compared to the second			Scheduler Log History	
Please log in to access this page.			Running Experiments:	
Sign In Username Password	(Diagnostics	Net execto
Remember Me	5G	enesis		
Sign m	5th Genera Network, E System In Sho	ition End-to-end experimentation, ntegration, and wcasing	Retail configuration	Reload facility
5Genesis Home Create Experiment V	/NFINS Management	fogus - Logout	SGenesis Home Create Experiment VNF/NS Management	fogus -
2			CREATE EXPERIMENT	
Your experiment has been successfully created			Name Туре	
Experiment ID Name Ty 12 First Test St	ACtion (Pe Action landard Run Experiment Executions	ACTIONS 10. January 2020, 3.14-58 Created experiment. First Test	Test Cases Test Case Cases Test Test Cases Test Test Test Test Cases Test	
Scheduler Lo	og History			
Running	Experiments: 39 Run Ja Togus	nuary 10, 2020 3:15 PM Run First Test	EFinished (100%) Finished (status: Finished)	ld: 40
Diagnost	ics			
		Configurati	on Log 7	
		Facility Log	7 7 4	

Figure 37 Set of screens depicting the steps for setting an experiment in the Portable Demonstrator

Figure 38 Memory usage and Throughput screens from the Grafana component

3. PORTABLE DEMONSTRATOR EVOLUTION IN SGENESIS

3.1. Evolution timeline

During the first integration cycle, specific actions have been taken towards a well-packaging of the components to serve a set of experiments that will convey easily the 5G performance capabilities to non-expert audience. Mainly, the following activities have been performed:

- The major infrastructure for the wireless part was prepared. It is composed of OAIcompliant (Open Air Interface Compliant) SDR hardware and general-purpose computers/servers that will host 5G RAN and core functionalities in the next phases.
- The first release of e2e monitoring tool has been integrated, providing RAN monitoring during the first integration phase.
- The first release of the transport network emulator has been integrated, providing the capability of emulating complex WAN topologies.
- NFVI infrastructure is in place based on INTEL NUC computing devices, together with the necessary cloud computing platform (Openstack) and OSM on top of it.

In summary, Figure 39 indicates in blue the components that have been chained to provide a first round of proof of concept experiments.

During the second integration cycle, specific actions have been taken capitalizing on the integrations made during the first integration cycle. Mainly, the following activities have been performed:

- Integration of the coordination layer components and pass the tests defined in project level for all the 5GENESIS platforms.
- Integration of three setups for the infrastructure part of the demonstrator, using open source (research oriented) components as well as commercial ones.

In summary, Figure 39 indicates in orange the components that have been chained to provide the second release of the 5GENESIS portable demonstrator. As can be observed in Figure 39, the major infrastructure part of the demonstrator was implemented, including also the Release B components of the coordination layer (Portal, ELCM, Slice Manager, Monitoring), which is also an advance in comparison to the intermediate release of the demonstrator.

The 5GENESIS portable demonstrator follows the general functional architecture of 5GENESIS, as defined in Deliverable D2.2 [2].

The figure below visualizes the per-phase instantiation of the 5GENESIS architectural blueprint in the 5GENESIS Portable demonstrator. It shows the functional blocks implemented and integrated in Phases 1 & 2, as well as the functionalities that integrated in the last Phase 3.

Figure 39 Instantiation of the 5GENESIS Architecture during integration cycle 3 (phase 3)

3.1.1. 4G Deployment Configurations

Table 10 presents the currently supported deployment configurations based on 4G technologies.

Deployment Parameters	Products/Technologies Options
ID	DEMO.E2E4G
Description	Opensource E2E deployment of experimentation environment with 4G infrastructure
Core Cloud	YES - Openstack
Edge Cloud	NA
# Edge Locations	NA
WAN/Network	SDN
Slice Manager	YES - Katana
MANO	OSM v6

Table 10 The 4G deployment configurations

NMS	eNB EMS	
Monitoring	Prometheus	
3GPP Technology	4G LTE+	
3GPP Option	ΝΑ	
Non-3GPP Technology	NA	
Core Network	OAI vEPC	
RAN	OAI eNB	
UE	COTS Cat.12 (600/300) / Huawei LTE Dongle	
Relevant Use Cases	To be defined	

3.1.2. 5G Deployment Configurations

Table 11 presents the currently supported deployment configurations based on 5G technologies.

Deployment Parameters	Products/Technologies Options				
ID	DEMO.5GNR	DEMO.5Gcots	DEMO.E2E5G		
Description	5GNR setup	5GNSA setup	Opensource/Commercial E2E experimentation environment with 5G infrastructure		
Core Cloud	NA	NA	OpenStack		
Edge Cloud	NA	NA	B2B Openstack		
# Edge Locations	NA	NA	1		
WAN/Network	NA	NA	WAN emulator/SDN		
Slice Manager	NA	Katana	Katana		
MANO	NA	NA	OSM		
NMS	NA	NA	OAI gNB NMS		
Monitoring	NA	Amarisoft	Open 5 GENESIS Suite/Prometheus		
3GPP Technology	5G	5G	5G		
3GPP Option	noS1	NSA/SA	NSA		
Non-3GPP Technology	NA	NA	NA		
Core Network	NA	Amarisoft	0AI		
RAN	OAI NR	Amarisoft gNB (SDR)	OAINR		

Table 11 The 5G deployment configurations

UE	ΟΑΙ	Samsung A90 5G	OAI/Google Pixel 5
Relevant Use Cases	To be defined	UAV field trials	Benchmarking tests

Finally, the aim of Phase 3 was to complete the implementation of the open 5GENESIS suite on its whole and to deliver a full-stack, end-to-end 5G experimental portable demonstrator with all the added-value features associated with the 5GENESIS. Phase 3 further evolved the 5G configuration, by employing fully functional 5G NR with both commercial and experimental UEs and 5G core functions. Moreover, the upper layer, namely the experimentation layer i.e., the Open5GENESIS suite, has been upgraded to the latest components, feature-rich versions.

More specifically, the following developments were achieved during Phase 3:

- ✓ 5G NR support evolution and stand-alone (SA) support
- ✓ Addition of 5G SA UEs, both COTS and Experimental ones.
- ✓ Integration of 5G CPEs.
- ✓ Upgrade of Open5Genesis Release B
- ✓ UC-specific developments (i.e., UAV specific additions, as described in Section 3.2.3)

These achievements are presented in detail in the sections to follow.

3.2. Phase 3 accomplishments

A constant updating of the demonstrator is performed after the implementation freezing for releasing the 5GENESIS portable demonstrator after the third integration cycle of the project. In Phase 3 we reflected the evolutions not only of the 5GENESIS Portable Demonstrator, but also of the whole project, incorporating the most recent (and relevant) technical advances and project outcomes, specifically Open 5GENESIS release B.

In Phase 3 the migration from 4G to 5G Mobile Network during 5GENESIS performed for the OAI-based setup, where the target is the integration of the 5G Standalone Architecture (SA) infrastructure have also achieved.

3.2.1. 5G NR support evolution and SA support

During Phase 3 the 5G portable demonstrator platform was enhanced with the Amarisoft Amari Callbox Classic (CBC) product, which implements a "5G-in-a-box" solution, integrating within a single compute node SDR-based radio as well as core. This enabled full 5G NR support and compatibility with both commercial and experimental UEs. The table below summarises the key 5G NR parameters which were mostly used for the integration and tests.

Parameter	Value
3GPP release	Rel. 15
Bandwidth	100 MHz
DL MIMO config	4x4

Table 12. 5G NR configuration in the Portable Demonstrator

Duplex mode	TDD
Network mode	NSA (Option 3), SA (Option 2)
Band	N78 (3490 MHz)/Configurable
Service type	eMBB

The table below shows the commercial UEs which have been successfully tested with the gNB in portable demonstrator

Table 13. Tested 5G UEs

Model	Modem (SoC)	Tested modes	
Samsung A90 5G	Qualcomm SM8150 Snapdragon 855	NSA	
Huawei P40 Lite 5G	Kirin 820 5G	NSA	
Waveshare SIM8200EA- M2 5G Hat	Qualcomm Snapdragon X55	NSA & SA	

3.2.2. Integration of Open5GENESIS Release B

During phase 3, most components of the Open5GENESIS experimentation suite have been deployed in their Release B version. Infrastructure related components including Influx DB, Grafana and testing probes were not affected, while OSM (NFVO) upgraded to version 7.

Release B components include:

- 5Genesis Portal
- 5Genesis Experiment Lifecycle Manager (ELCM)
- Slice Manager
- Dispatcher
- Analytics

Proper integration of Release B components is covered by a set of test cases illustrated in Deliverable D5.2. All components are running inside VMs, as stated at Section 2.3.

Firstly, the ELCM (Figure 40), the Scheduler of 5Genesis Platform, upgraded with the addition of Resources and Scenarios options for each experiment, as well as the connection to 5Genesis Dispatcher.

The Dispatcher, then, is added to the experiment execution flow, by adding a layer of authentication between the Portal requests and the ELCM and also the communication with MANO Layer.

The updated version of the Portal is enhanced with VNF/NS onboarding option on selected cloud location (edge or core)(Figure 41) and option for using the experiment results with Analytics tool (Figure 42).

Finally, Katana Slice Manager updated in order to support the creation and management of Network Slices.

An overview of the components interfaces is depicted below:

Scheduler	Log	History						
			Running Experiments:		(idie)			Next execution id: 13
			Resources					
			Diagnostics					
			Debug Info 8 Warning	Error Critical	Configuration Log 8			
			Logging [Folder: Logs; Applevel: INF Portal [Host: 127.0.0.1; Port: 5000] SliceManager [Host: 10.10.5.123; Por Tap [Enabled: True; OpenTap: True; E Grafana is disabled InfluxOb [Enabled: True; User: admin Metadata [Host]p: 127.0.0.1; Facilit EastWest [Enabled: False; Timeout: 1	0; LogLevel: DEBUG] +t: 8000] ixe: tap.exe; Folder: /home/ubu 1; Password: admin; Database: t y: None] 120]	untu/.tap; Results: /home/ubuntu/.t apdb; Host: 10.10.5.119; Port: 808	tap/Results; EnsureC 36]	losed: True; EnsureAdb	Closed: False]
					Facility Log 8 11 1			
			Relo	ad configuration		Re	eload facility	
			Fig	gure 40. ELCM R	elease B Dashboa	rd		
				Basic I	nformation			
		Ν	lame		Location		Visibility	
			test-4-3 ns onboard		P limassol-core		Public	
		Ĺ	Description					
						✓ Network se	//	
			Update				,	
				Virtualized Infra	structure Manager			
			Vim Image: test_image 🦺					
				VNFD	Packages			
			hackfest_1_vnfd_fixed.tar.g	D: hackfest1-vnf				
			Available VNFDs:	hackfest1-vnf		~	Add	
			Add VNFD package	Browse			Pre-load	
				Network Se	rvice Descriptor			
			hackfest_1_nsd_fixed.tar.gz	D: hackfest1-ns				

Figure 41. VNF onboarding through Portal UI

5Genesis	Home	Create Experiment	Network Services	Info	new_user	- Logout
Experiment	5: Sim	ole Test				
· Type: Standa	ard					
Run Experiment	View des	criptor				
			EXECU	TIONS		
Execution ID	Statu	s	Start Time	End Time	Action	
18	PostR Finish	un Finished (status: ed)	28 July 2021,	11:24:47 -		

Figure 42 Portal Release B with additional features

3.2.3. Use of 5GENESIS portable demonstrator for video streaming test cases

Portable Demonstrator offers a plethora of test cases in coordination with its components. Figure 43 shows some of them. An experimenter can run a test case through the Portal or by using an App in a device and the results are depicted in Grafana and are stored in InfluxDB databases while the automation is handled by OpenTAP. The Test Cases, therefore, can be categorized as Prometheus Test Cases, Application Test Cases, SDN Test Cases and TAP Test Cases.

CREATE EXPERIMENT

Figure 43 Portable Demonstrator Experiment List

The first category consists of Experiments, that use Prometheus exporters like Blackbox and Node in order to monitor network statistics or statistics of specific network node. Figure 44 shows an execution of a test case using Node exporter.

Figure 44 Node Exporter Results using Portable Demonstrator

In the second category, the Demonstrator executes an experiment with the use of an application. These applications are the UMA (IPerf, Ping, Resource Agent) and FOGUS (VRM) NetApps. The Android applications have been integrated with the platform in order to monitor devices' performance upon a network such as the CPU and RAM usage or the ping delay. While the FOGUS VRM App can monitor the main network traffic, system performance, video information and video's metadata. Figure 44 and Figure 46 show the functionality of the apps and their results in Grafana.

Figure 45 VRM FOGUS App

	Ping		AB	OUT	II. Re	esource Ag	gent		
Ping tan	get:								
WWW	noo aloon	n				S	ТОР		
TTL·	joogle.com								
100			STOP		Operator:	GR COSMOTE	Ne	twork:	LTE
128					Cell ID:	71426	LA	C:	4003
Applicat	tion log:				RSSI:	254	PS	SC:	-1
Initializa	ation complete	əd.			RSRP:	255	SN	IR:	-10
Ping sta Delay: 1 Delay: 7 Delay: 7 Delay: 7 Delay: 7 Delay: 7 Delay: 7 Delay: 8 Delay: 8 Delay: 6 Delay: 6 Delay: 5 Delay: 5 Delay: 5 Delay: 5 Delay: 5	rted: Target:w 13.0 ms 14.0 ms 6.0 ms 0.4 ms 0.4 ms 9.0 ms 9.3 ms 9.3 ms 9.9 ms 0.8 ms 1.6 ms 2.5 ms 8.1 ms 4.7 ms 8.7 ms 6.7 ms 8.2 ms 8.5 ms 9.7 ms 0.3 ms	/ww.google.co	m, TTL:128.		CQI: Applicatio Initiali Starting Resource TIME CPU RAM PACKETS BYTES TIME CPU RAM PACKETS BYTES	-8 n log: zation compi Resource Ag Agent task 08:55:50 Used: 0.09 Used: 0.01 Rcvd: 0 Rcvd: 0 08:55:51 Used: 0.05 Used: 0.05 Used: 0.05 Used: 0.05 Used: 0.05 State 152 Rcvd: 0 Rcvd: 0 	RS Jeted. gent. has st 7 MB 1 1 4 MB 1 1	Avail: Trans: Trans: Trans: Trans: Trans:	-18 1319 MB 0 0 1282 MB 0 0
Delay. I	04.01113					CLEA	AR LOG		
				Ping De	elay				
09:46:12	09:46:14 09:46	:16 09:46:18	09:46:20 09:4	6:22 09:	:46:24 09:4	6:26 09:46:28	09:46:30	09:46:33	2 09:46:34
09:46:12	09:46:14 09:46	5:16 09:46:18	09:46:20 09:4 Ava	i6:22 09: ailable RA	-46:24 09:4 MM (MB)	6:26 09:46:28	09:46:30	09:46:3	2 09:46:34
09:46:12	09:46:14 09:46	5:16 09:46:18	09:46:20 09:4 Av:	i6:22 09: ailable RA	:46:24 09:4 AM (MB)	6:26 09:46:28	09:46:30	09:46:3	2 09:46:34
09:46:12	09:46:14 09:44	5:16 09:46:18	09:46:20 09:4	i6:22 09: ailable RA	46:24 09:4	6:26 09:46:28	09:46:30	09:46:3	2 09:46:34
09:46:12	09:46:14 09:44	5:16 09:46:18	09:46:20 09:4	ailable RA	-46:24 09:4	626 094628	09:46:30	09:46:3	2 09:46:34
09:46:12	09-46:14 09-46	5:16 09:46:18	09:46:20 09:4	i6:22 09: ailable RA	46:24 09:4	6:26 09:46:28	09:46:30	09:46:3	2 09:46:34
09:46:12	09-46:14 09-44	5.16 09:46:18	09:46:20 09:4	i6:22 09: ailable RA	M (MB)	6.26 09.46.28	09:46:30	09:46:3	2 094634

The third category consists of the test cases using the WAN Emulator and the SDN TestBox. With the integration of these tools, an experimenter can create a network topology and test and monitor the network under selected conditions.

The final category consists of test cases, which use Test Probes and TAP Plugins from 5Genesis OpenSuite. With Test Agents like IPerf, Ping and DASH Agents installed, configured and executed and the configuration of TAP Plugins, a user can run an experiment using the Agents remotely from the machine that are installed. Figure 47 and Figure 48 show the execution of a Test Case using the DASH Client Agent and its results.

Figure 47 FOGUS DASH Client UI

Figure 48 DASH Client Results

3.2.4. Use of 5GENESIS portable demonstrator for 5G-enabled UAV field trials

To cover the needs of the rapidly growing sector of UAVs, the 3GPP Working Groups (WGs) are active towards the mapping of the 5G system and the connectivity requirements of Unmanned Aerial Systems (UAS). In Release 15 of their standard LTE Aerial, 3GPP has conducted studies on the consequences of serving low altitude UAVs using LTE radio. The result of the studies was the publication of report 36.777 Enhanced LTE Support for Aerial Vehicles [8], on January 2018. The main focus of the specific report is to investigate the efficiency of the LTE radio networks to provide services to low altitude UAVs and moreover how the LTE performance can be affected by the use of User Equipment (UE) in UAVs.

A preliminary analysis focusing on the service criteria for UAV identification is included in Release 16 entitled Remote Identification of UAS (FS_ID_UAS) [9]. A final report 22.825 Study on Remote Identification of UAS was generated as a result of this work [10]. Following this report the primary aim of the Release 16 UAV study is to define standards for UAV operators, law enforcement, regulatory bodies, and Original Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs) around the world. The research is focused on the idea of defining a UAV by using control data that can be sent over the 3GPP network.

The transmission may take place between a UAV or a UAV controller and a network-based UAV Traffic Management system [11]. Release 17, enhancements for UAVs (FS_EAV), describes the Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) related to UAVs and the enhanced requirements for the UAV services [12]. Furthermore, the objective of this research is to come up with new scenarios that cover both commercial and hobbyist UAV applications.

Regarding the communication aspects between the UAV and the Ground Control Station (GCS) and taking into consideration the diversity of the applications that can be benefited by the deployment of UAVs, they can be classified into two main categories: the command and control (C2) and the payload communication, which both of them have been tested using the 5GENESIS portable demonstrator deployed at an open space like Egaleo Stadium, shown in the following figure.

Figure 49 5GENESIS portable demonstrator at Egaleo Stadium supporting 5G-enabled UAV trials

3.2.4.1. C2 Link

The C2 link establishes communication between the UAV & the GCS or other ground systems such as the radio controller. It must facilitate highly efficient, low-latency, and bidirectional secure communications, usually with low data rate requirements, so that critical information can be shared between the UAV flight controller and the ground control station.

Traffic Type for C2	Bandwidth	Latency	
Command and	0.001 Mbps	VLOS: 10 ms	
Control		Non-VLOS: 360 ms	
Telemetry	0.012 Mbps w/o video	1 sec	
Real-Time	0.06 Mbps w/o video	100 ms	
Video Streaming	4 Mbps for 720p video	100 ms	
	9 Mbps for 1080p video		
	[30 Mbps for 4K Video]: optional		
Situation Aware report	1 Mbps	10-100 ms	

Table 14. KPIs for c2 link

The C2 link does not include, or interact with payload related data, such as cameras, LIDAR, etc. There can be various types of C2 links to connect the GCS or radio controller to the UAV. Some of the options are 433 MHz (Europe), 915 MHz (USA), 868 MHz, 2.4 GHz, 5.8 GHz, LTE band, and more recently, 5G bands. 3GPP has recommended specific KPIs for the C2 link communication for various types of data shared between the UAV and the ground control systems.

Through several experiments, the latency for various C2 bands have been identified and validated as illustrated in the following figure. For example, the 868 MHz band showed an RTL (Round Trip Latency) of 110 to 600 ms. The 2.4 GHz has an average latency ranging from 22 to 310 ms, while the LTE band has an average latency of around 200 ms.

3.2.4.2. Payload Communications

On the other hand, the payload communication link is used for transmitting data applications and usually supports high data rates, thus requiring high throughput. The type of data may include image, video, relaying or backhauling data packets, heavy LIDAR data in LAS format, etc. The application scenario each time indicates the type of payload communication to be used, as well as the capacity requirements.

Figure 50. Round trip latency for C2 link and LTE

Moreover, these types of links are usually characterized by higher tolerance and security requirements in comparison to the C2 communication links. To cite an instance, in case of an application that requires video capturing, the UAV will transmit the captured video to the end users via payload communication.

Table 15. Data rates for payload communications

	Value	Application
	UL 4 Mbps	1080p video transmission
ţ	UL 30 Mbps	4K HD video
a Ra	UL 60 Mbps	8K HD video
Dat	UL 1 Gbps	AR/VR

To transmit a full high-definition video from a UAV to a GCS the transmission rate requires several Mb/s, while the transmission rate for a 4K video can exceed 40 Mb/s. For supporting an application with wireless backhauling the UAV communication requirements can be in the scale of Gb/s. Table II summarizes the requirements regarding the data rates for the payload communication. For a typical transmission of an image or video the end-to-end latency can potentially include delays regarding coding decoding and processing. Moreover, latency includes the air-interface as well the latency of the core network. The indicative values related to the latency for image or video transmission are illustrated in the next table.

 Table 16. Latency For Payload Communications

ý	End to end latency	Network	Application
Latenc	<400ms	<40ms	Image/Video Transmission

3.2.4.3. QoS and UAS Services

Based on the 3GPP requirements, Command and Control indicates the consideration of safety concerns, including the risk of collision or the risk of loss of control of a UAV. Therefore, to avoid the safety risks, when considering the 5G network as the transport network, it is important to provide Quality of Service (QoS) for the C2 communication towards UAV services. The new enablers that the 5G cellular networks introduce, can provide an end-to-end QoS system consisting of characteristics such as network slicing that has the potential to respond better to the needs of the increasingly diverse UAVs' applications. Each slice created on top of a physical infrastructure stands for a complete logical network consisting of network capabilities as well as associated resources which can provide specific end-to-end enhanced service capabilities.

In the light of the above by allocating a dedicated slice for the connected UAV, we can separate the service and the radio resource management for the UAV from those allocated for the terrestrial infrastructure. Moreover, it is possible to provide service differentiation for a diversity of UAVs' operations, for example by using different slices to support control signaling and applications for specific data services (image/video transmission).

3.2.4.4. 5G-Enabled UAS Architecture

This section provides details on the use-case specific components that used for the needs of this trials in order to realize the deployment of the scenario and further validate the feasibility of delivering the C2 connectivity to the UAV over 5G. The elements of the UAS along with the 5G portable demonstrator, are comprised of the UAS deployed in the Edge cloud, the Unmanned Traffic Management (UTM) deployed off-site, the Streaming server deployed in a private cloud and two drones, one for patrolling and one for infrastructure. DJI MAVIC drone dedicated for patrolling was used to measure the radio network quality (QoS). The infrastructure drone was a tethered custom-made drone which offers unlimited power supply and secured data transfer for safer operations.

Ground Control Station

The amount and the complexity of the UAV missions require the remote pilot to use not only a joystick for the real-time navigation, but to utilize a GCS for accessing, analysing and editing all the required data, applying sophisticated piloting mechanisms, based on AI mechanisms and Decision Support Systems (DSS). The GCS of the 5G-enabled UAV prototype consists of a USB joystick/gamepad for the real-time manual UAV control and a Graphical User Interface (GUI) software, running at the edge computing node of the 5G network, for supporting more complex applications and autonomous flying. "QGroundControl" is the open-source GCS software that is used for the needs of the 5G-enabled UAV prototype, which supports sending joystick/manually-generated piloting commands to the UAV, but also automated generated from a respective autonomous flying application. Additionally, further configurations are supported, such as adjusting the parameters of the UAV flight controller, tracking the UAV position on a map, viewing telemetry data (e.g. battery level, temperature, speed etc.), sending special navigation commands (e.g. loiter, mission etc.) and accessing the flight log as is illustrated in the following figure.

Figure 51 QGroundControl software deployed at the edge of the 5G system

The software has also the capability of embedding the UAV video stream, allowing the user to view all the data (i.e. telemetry and video) in one screen. Alternatively, the video stream can open to a new window or even to a new device (e.g., another laptop connected to the 5G network), so other people can watch.

3.2.4.5. Field Trials and Results

Feasibility trials of UAV flight with 5G network were conducted at the Stavros Mavrothalassitis stadium of the Municipality of Egaleo. The realization of the 5G enabled UAS is presented in the following figure. UAV drone flight control (C2) software UGCS [13] was installed on a 5G Edge server and a flight mission was sent to the drone controller over the 5G network [14-15]. In addition, C2 system was connected to UTM test system, which in real life distributes drone locations to air traffic services and other drone operators. In this way, UAVs can fly together simultaneously, in the common airspace, avoiding collisions and accidents.

Figure 52. 5G-UAS Architecture of automated flight trials

Moreover, based on policy enforcements, the UTM via its integration with the 5G system, can mandate instantly the UAV landing, if a security incident occurs or a regulation bans flights over a specific location. Afterwards, experimental measurements at the height of 10m were performed in order to assess the coverage of the 5G network and the impact of the antenna pitch to the flight performance and accuracy of the UAV. The 5G coverage measurements were performed using a 5G-enabled smartphone attached to the patrolling drone, and utilizing the Ookla Speedtest application, to assess the uplink and downlink rates. The next figure visualizes the experimental results of the coverage of an automated flight following a circular trajectory around the center of the stadium.

Figure 53. Coverage area with uplink and downlink values

The greener the spots, the better the reception quality and the 5G coverage, while the yellow spots refer to medium reception quality and finally the red ones at bad reception quality. The different coverage levels are also depicted in the respective throughput rates in the uplink and downlink, where the maximum download rate in a good coverage point was 142 Mbps, while the respective value was significantly lower, in a bad reception point, i.e., 13 Mbps. Respectively,

the uplink rate was measured from 37 Mbps, down to 22 Mbps as illustrated in the next figure.

Figure 54. Signal strength vs gNB distance

Moreover, the average latency of the C2 signals over the 5G channel, was measured and found equal to approx. 30ms, which is a significant improvement in comparison to the respective round-trip latency measured for C2 link over LTE. Measurements of the signal strength were performed using the NetMonitor application. The deduced plots the signal strength as a function of the distance from the gNB during the automated flight. As we can see, there is a smooth decay of the signal strength as the drone moves away from the base station. It is also important to note that the UTM integration worked smoothly and the location of the Patrolling drone was visible in real time in the UTM system.

4. CONCLUSIONS

This document presented the third release of the 5GENESIS portable demonstrator, as well as the activities conducted for the evolution of the demonstrator towards its final implementation.

During this third integration cycle of the project, the infrastructure part of the demonstrator was implemented, following a modular approach that resulted to three setups, namely, the OAI-based 4G set up, the OAI-based NSA 5G set up, and the commercial 5G SA/NSA set up. Also, the integration of the Release B components of the coordination layer (Portal, Dispatcher, ELCM, Slice Manager, Monitoring) and an upgrade of the transport network emulator with the FOGUS SDN testbox was completed successfully.

The configuration made and the activities conducted for the utilisation of the 5GENESIS portable demonstrator in lab-based tests (i.e., the video streaming test case) and in field trials (i.e., the UAV control in a stadium) are also presented in this document.

REFERENCES

- [1] 5GENESIS Consortium, "Deliverable D2.1 Requirements of the Facility", 2018
- [2] 5GENESIS Consortium, "Deliverable D2.2 Overall Facility Design and Specifications", 2018
- [3] 5GENESIS Consortium, "Deliverable D2.3 Initial planning of tests and experimentation", 2018
- [4] 5GENESIS Consortium, "Deliverable D4.16 Portable 5G Platform Release A", 2019
- [5] 5GENESIS Consortium, Deliverable D5.1 System-Level Tests and Verification, 2020
- [6] Florian Kaltenberger, Guy de Souza, Raymond Knopp, Hongzhi Wang, "The OpenAirInterface 5G New Radio Implementation: Current Status and Roadmap", [Online] <u>http://www.eurecom.fr/publication/5822</u>
- [7] 5GENESIS Consortium, "Deliverable D3.3 Slice Management Release A", 2019
- [8] 3GPP TR 22.829, Technical specification group Services and Systems aspects: Enhancement for Unmanned Aerial Vehicles (V17.1.0, Sept, 2019).
- [9] 3GPP Technical Report 36.777, "Technical specification group radio access network; Study on enhanced LTE support for aerial vehicles (Release 15)," Dec. 2017.
- [10] 3GPP New Study on Remote Identification of Unmanned Aerial Systems (UAS), SP 180172.
- [11] 3GPP Technical Report 22.825, Study on Remote Identification of Unmanned Aerial Systems (UAS), (Release 16), Sept. 2018.
- [12] 3GPP Technical Report 22.125; 22.261, 5G Enhancement for UAVs, (Release 17), April 2020.
- [13] UGCS, <u>https://www.ugcs.com</u>
- F. Alvarez, D. Breitgand, D. Griffin, P. Andriani, S. Rizou, N. Zioulis, F. Moscatelli, J. Serrano, M. Keltsch, P. Trakadas, T. K. Phan, A. Weit, U. Acar, O. Prieto, F. Iadanza, G. Carrozzo, H. Koumaras, D. Zarpalas, D. Jimenez, ""An Edge-to-Cloud Virtualized Multimedia Service Platform for 5G Networks", IEEE Transactions on Broadcasting, Vol. 65(2), pp.369 380, 2019
- [15] M.-A. Kourtis, B. Blanco, J. P. Romero, D. Makris, M. J McGrath, G. Xilouris, D. Munaretto, R. Solozabal, A. Sanchoyerto, I. Giannoulakis, E. Kafetzakis, V. Riccobene, E. Jimeno, A. Kourtis, R. Ferrús, F. Liberal, H. Koumaras, A. Kostopoulos, I. Chochliouros, "A Cloud-Enabled Small Cell Architecture in 5G Networks for Broadcast/Multicast Services", IEEE Transactions on Broadcasting, Vol.65(2), pp: 414 424, 2019